
 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Nicole Johnson (Division 2) – President, Randy Mendosa (Division 3) – Vice-President, 

Rene Campbell (Division 1) – Director, Elena David (Division 4) – Director,  
David Rosen (Division 5) – Director 

 
Regular Board Meeting 

January 14, 2020 
5:30 p.m. 

Location: 631 9th Street, Arcata 
Arcata Station Classroom  

 
AGENDA 

 
 
1)  CALL TO ORDER  
 

2)  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
3)  ATTENDANCE AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 

 
4) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
5)  PUBLIC COMMENT 
Any person may address the District Board on any subject pertaining to District business, which is not listed on the 
agenda. This comment is provided by the Ralph M Brown Open Meeting Act (Government Code § 54950 et seq.) 
and may be limited to three (3) minutes for any person addressing the Board. Any request that requires Board 
action may be set by the Board for a future agenda or referred to staff. 

 
6)  CONSENT CALENDAR 
Consent calendar items are considered routine and are acted upon by the Board with a single action. Members of 
the audience wishing to provide public input may request that the Board remove the item from the Consent 
Calendar. Comments may be limited to three (3) minutes. 

6.1 Approval of Minutes from December 10, 2019 Regular Meeting  Pg. 4 
6.2 December 2019 Financial Report        Pg. 8 

 
7)  PUBLIC HEARING  
These are items of a Quasi-Judicial or Legislative nature.  Public comments relevant to these 
proceedings are invited. 
 There is no public hearing scheduled.  

 
8)  OLD BUSINESS 
 8.1 Measure R Updates        Pg. 21 

 
 
 
 

1



9)  NEW BUSINESS 
9.1 Consider Accepting the Fiscal Year 2018-19 Financial Audit Report  Pg. 22 
 Attachment 1 – Draft Audit Fiscal Year Ending June 30. 2019  Pg. 23 
9.2 Request for Nominations for Humboldt Local Agency Formation Commission 
(LAFCo)          Pg. 98 
 Attachment 1 – Request for Nominations to Serve on LAFCo  Pg. 100 
 Attachment 2 – Special District Member Nomination Form 2020   Pg. 102 
 Attachment 3 – Special District Member Candidate Information Sheet  Pg. 103  
9.3 Consider Claim for Damages Filed by Cynthia Turnbull   Pg. 104 
 Attachment 1 – Accident Report      Pg. 105 
 Attachment 2 – Email Communication with Claim Instructions  Pg. 106 
 Attachment 3 – Claim from Cynthia Turnbull    Pg. 107 
 Attachment 4 – Communication from Allied Public Risk   Pg. 119 
9.4 Consider Establishing a Board Policy and Procedures Manual Review  
Committee          Pg. 120 
 

10)  CORRESPONDENCE  
10.1 Thank you notes from Laurel Tree Charter School for the Station Tour – Captain 
Padula and Firefighter Kadle        Pg. 121 
10.2 Thank you to Eliska Crowell for the Holiday Wreath presented to the McKinleyville 
A Shift and displayed in the business office during the holidays   Pg. 123 
10.3 Thank you from Kid Street Learning Center in Santa Rosa    Pg. 124 
10.4 Thank you from Rachel W.        Pg. 126 
10.5 Thank you from Coastal Grove Charter School – Captain Padula & Firefighter 
Gordinier          Pg. 127 
10.6 Merry Christmas cards from the Arcata Christian School    Pg. 130 
10.7 Thank you from Arcata Main Street for assistance (Becky Schuette) and participation 
Captain John Evenson and Firefighters Russell Kadle & Alex Sutter) with Trick-or-Treat 
on the Plaza           Pg. 133 
10.8 Thank you from the District to the local Target for the issuance of two $500 gift 
cards to be used for disaster preparedness – Battalion Chief Campbell   

 
11)  MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORTS 
 11.1 Chief’s Report         Pg. 134    
 11.2 Committee Reports          
 11.3 Director Matters 
 11.4 Bargaining Group & Association Reports     Pg. 138   

       
12)  CLOSED SESSIONS 
At any time during the regular session, the Board may adjourn to closed session to consider existing or anticipated 
litigation, liability claims, real property negotiations, license and permit determinations, threats to security, public 
employee appointments, personnel matters, evaluations and discipline, labor negotiations, or to discuss with legal 
counsel matters within the attorney-client privilege. 
 

There is no closed session scheduled. 
2



 
 

13) ADJOURNMENT  
 
Next Regular Board Meeting is scheduled for February 11, 2020 at 5:30 pm. Arcata 
Station Classroom. 
 
 
 

Prepared by: Becky Schuette, Clerk of the Board 
 
 

The Arcata Fire Protection District ("District"), in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA"), 
individuals who require special accommodations to access, attend and/or participate in District board meetings due to a 
disability, shall make their request by calling (707)825-2000, no later than 48 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting 
time. In compliance with Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt writings that are distributed to a majority or all of 
the Board in advance of a meeting may be viewed at 2149 Central Avenue, McKinleyville, California or at the scheduled 
meeting. In addition, if you would like a copy of any record related to an item on the agenda, please contact the Board 
Secretary, at (707) 825-2000.   
The meeting agenda is posted at least 72 hours in advance of regular scheduled meetings, at the following locations: 

• District's Headquarters’ Building, 2149 Central Avenue, McKinleyville, CA 95519 
• Arcata Downtown Station, 631 9th Street, Arcata, CA 95521 
• Mad River Station, 3235 Janes Road, Arcata, CA 95521 
• The Arcata Fire Protection District website:  www.arcatafire.org 

3



Item 6.1

4



5



6



7



Dec 31, 19

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
CCCU CHECKING 246,482.24
COUNTY TREASURY 2,339,989.67
C.T. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 2013 188,630.22
C.T. CONTINGENCY DESIGNATN 2011

TRAINING RESERVE 17,000.00
C.T. CONTINGENCY DESIGNATN 2011 - Other 39,596.13

Total C.T. CONTINGENCY DESIGNATN 2011 56,596.13

C.T. PERS DESIGNATION 2012 30,333.00
COAST CENTRAL SAVINGS

DONATIONS 682.50
COAST CENTRAL SAVINGS - Other 78.61

Total COAST CENTRAL SAVINGS 761.11

Total Checking/Savings 2,862,792.37

Accounts Receivable
1200 ꞏ ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 53,599.59

Total Accounts Receivable 53,599.59

Other Current Assets
ACCT RECV -  COUNTY TREASURY 2,094,202.49
GRANT REIMBURSEMENT RECEIVABLE 9,600.00
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 9,500.00
PREPAID EXPENSE 28,787.89

Total Other Current Assets 2,142,090.38

Total Current Assets 5,058,482.34

Fixed Assets
BUILDINGS AND IMPROVEMENTS 2,329,696.91
EQUIPMENT 3,972,934.56
LAND 224,630.00
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION -2,849,439.00

Total Fixed Assets 3,677,822.47

Other Assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS-PENSION 1,666,614.00
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS-OPEB 281,304.00

Total Other Assets 1,947,918.00

TOTAL ASSETS 10,684,222.81

7:58 AM ARCATA FIRE DISTRICT

01/09/20 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of December 31, 2019

Page 1

Item 6.2

8



Dec 31, 19

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

2000 ꞏ ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 97,891.57

Total Accounts Payable 97,891.57

Credit Cards
US BANK 992.16

Total Credit Cards 992.16

Other Current Liabilities
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 2 28,787.89
ACCRUED EXPENSES - OTHER 52,462.81
ACCRUED INTEREST EXPENSE 7,604.55
COMPENSATION TIME OFF 28,617.03
WAGES PAYABLE 99,330.60
2100 ꞏ PAYROLL LIABILITIES

457 DEDUCTION 7,695.37
CA WITHHOLDING 4,298.24
FEDERAL WITHHOLDING 9,558.00
MEDICARE - BOTH 2,291.70
SOCIAL SECURITY - BOTH 390.92
SURVIVOR BENEFIT 43.71
2100 ꞏ PAYROLL LIABILITIES - Other 4,441.01

Total 2100 ꞏ PAYROLL LIABILITIES 28,718.95

Current portion of L/T Debt 152,696.22

Total Other Current Liabilities 398,218.05

Total Current Liabilities 497,101.78

Long Term Liabilities
ACCRUED EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 83,895.58
NET PENSION LIABILITY 5,425,143.00
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BEN. LIAB 10,465,268.00
WELLS FARGO EQUIPMENT FINANCE # 159,352.79
Less-Cur Portion of L/T Debt -152,696.22
DEFERRED INFLOWS-PENSION 108,779.00
DEFERRED INFLOWS-OPEB 374,158.00

Total Long Term Liabilities 16,463,900.15

Total Liabilities 16,961,001.93

7:58 AM ARCATA FIRE DISTRICT

01/09/20 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of December 31, 2019

Page 2

9



Dec 31, 19

Equity
INVESTMENT IN FIXED ASSETS 3,373,030.86
3900 ꞏ RETAINED EARNINGS -11,443,868.56
Net Income 1,794,058.58

Total Equity -6,276,779.12

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 10,684,222.81

7:58 AM ARCATA FIRE DISTRICT

01/09/20 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of December 31, 2019

Page 3

10



Dec 19

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income 2,010,318.99
Adjustments to reconcile Net Income
to net cash provided by operations:

1200 ꞏ ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 7,618.00
ACCT RECV -  COUNTY TREASURY -338,617.00
2000 ꞏ ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 40,920.81
US BANK -834.78
US BANK:EVENSON 27.55
US BANK:J. MCDONALD 82.32
US BANK:SCHUETTE 572.85
2100 ꞏ PAYROLL LIABILITIES 928.17
2100 ꞏ PAYROLL LIABILITIES:457 DEDUCTION 3,580.37
2100 ꞏ PAYROLL LIABILITIES:CA WITHHOLDING 93.55
2100 ꞏ PAYROLL LIABILITIES:FEDERAL WITHHOLDING 43.00
2100 ꞏ PAYROLL LIABILITIES:MEDICARE - BOTH 90.36
2100 ꞏ PAYROLL LIABILITIES:SOCIAL SECURITY - BOTH -21.94
2100 ꞏ PAYROLL LIABILITIES:SURVIVOR BENEFIT 0.93

Net cash provided by Operating Activities 1,724,803.18

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
WELLS FARGO EQUIPMENT FINANCE # -145,438.82

Net cash provided by Financing Activities -145,438.82

Net cash increase for period 1,579,364.36

Cash at beginning of period 1,283,428.01

Cash at end of period 2,862,792.37

7:59 AM ARCATA FIRE DISTRICT

01/09/20 Statement of Cash Flows
December 2019

Page 1

11



Type Date Memo Account Amount

AARON FELMLEE
Bill 12/23/2019 SMG negotiations 5180.16 ꞏ Human Resource ... 665.34

Total AARON FELMLEE 665.34

ADVANCED SECURITY
Bill 12/04/2019 McK Station 5060.2 ꞏ Alarm Monitoring 196.50
Bill 12/26/2019 Arcata and MR Station monitoring 5060.2 ꞏ Alarm Monitoring 276.00

Total ADVANCED SECURITY 472.50

ARCATA PROF. FIREFIGHTERS, LOCAL 4981
Credit Card Charge 12/20/2019 Uniform Tshirt for Sophie Levy-Sheon 5050.1 ꞏ Uniforms 12.00

Total ARCATA PROF. FIREFIGHTERS, LOCAL 4981 12.00

ARCATA VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS ASSOC.
Bill 12/12/2019 LED Worklight for VLU Rig 5370.6 ꞏ Firefighting Equipment 84.53
Bill 12/18/2019 January 5210 ꞏ RENT 8,000.00

Total ARCATA VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS ASSOC. 8,084.53

BADGES EX CETERA
Credit Card Charge 12/12/2019 EMT Paramedic collar insignia x5 5050.1 ꞏ Uniforms 61.00

Total BADGES EX CETERA 61.00

BRENDEN GREEN
Bill 12/30/2019 Vision Reimbursement 5030.6 ꞏ Vision 179.98

Total BRENDEN GREEN 179.98

CAFE MARINA
Credit Card Charge 12/18/2019 HCFCA Breakfast 5080.1 ꞏ Food/Rehab Supplies 9.32

Total CAFE MARINA 9.32

CAL PERS
Liability Check 12/06/2019 Employer Contributions PP 10-20-19 to 11-02-19 5020.1 ꞏ CalPERS Retirement 16,881.83
Liability Check 12/20/2019 Employer Contributions  PP 11-03-19 to 11-16-19 5020.1 ꞏ CalPERS Retirement 16,759.69

Total CAL PERS 33,641.52

CalPERS 457 PLAN
Liability Check 12/06/2019 Employer Match  PP 11-03-19 to 11-16-19 5010.5 ꞏ Deferred Compensa... 2,400.00
Liability Check 12/20/2019 Employer Match  PP 11/17/19 to 11/30/19 5010.5 ꞏ Deferred Compensa... 2,400.00

Total CalPERS 457 PLAN 4,800.00

CAT FINANCIAL
Bill 12/02/2019 Repairs and services 8239 ꞏ E8239 1,676.05

Total CAT FINANCIAL 1,676.05

CITY OF ARCATA
Bill 12/06/2019 2 months, previous bill not received. Arcata 276.78
Bill 12/11/2019 Service Period 11-7-19 to 12-06-19 Mad River 145.06

Total CITY OF ARCATA 421.84

COASTAL BUSINESS SYSTEMS, INC
Bill 12/17/2019 Copy machine and printers 5200.1 ꞏ Copier 566.93

Total COASTAL BUSINESS SYSTEMS, INC 566.93

COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT - RISK MGT DIVISION
Bill 12/20/2019 Primary Workers Compensation 5035.1 ꞏ PRIMARY 47,579.00
Bill 12/20/2019 Excess Workers Compensation 5035.2 ꞏ EXCESS 22,606.00
Bill 12/20/2019 20% Admin Fee 5035.3 ꞏ ADMIN FEE 14,037.00

Total COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT - RISK MGT DIVISION 84,222.00

DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY & FIRE PROTECTION
Bill 12/23/2019 Confined space awareness Green and Kadle - taught by BC Ca... 5234.1 ꞏ Staff Training 48.00
Bill 12/31/2019 Dispatch fees - Service Period 07/01/9 to 09/30/19 5180.1 ꞏ Dispatch Contract (... 21,486.14
Bill 12/31/2019 Dispatch fees - Service Period 04/01/19 to 06/30/19 5180.1 ꞏ Dispatch Contract (... 21,364.91

Total DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY & FIRE PROTECTION 42,899.05

EMERGENCY REPORTING
Bill 12/01/2019 January - December 2020 5150.9 ꞏ Emergency Reportin... 3,218.00

Total EMERGENCY REPORTING 3,218.00

8:00 AM ARCATA FIRE DISTRICT

01/09/20 Expenses by Vendor Detail
Accrual Basis December 2019

Page 1

12



Type Date Memo Account Amount

EUREKA OXYGEN
Bill 12/27/2019 Hydrotest 5140 ꞏ MEDICAL SUPPLIES 28.50

Total EUREKA OXYGEN 28.50

FDAC EBA
Bill 12/11/2019 January Billing 5030.4 ꞏ Dental & Life Insura... 3,093.19

Total FDAC EBA 3,093.19

GOOGLE INC.
Credit Card Charge 12/02/2019 G Suite November 5150.8 ꞏ Google Services 228.00
Credit Card Charge 12/31/2019 G Suite December 5150.8 ꞏ Google Services 228.00

Total GOOGLE INC. 456.00

HENSELS
Bill 12/14/2019 4 screws 5130.1 ꞏ General Structure M... 0.48

Total HENSELS 0.48

HI-TECH EMERGENCY VEHICLE SERVICE
Credit 12/30/2019 Credit Note CR03979 - Return Leveling kit 800941 ꞏ REFUNDS -377.80

Total HI-TECH EMERGENCY VEHICLE SERVICE -377.80

HUMBOLDT SANITATION
Bill 12/06/2019 November Billing McK 207.50

Total HUMBOLDT SANITATION 207.50

LES SCHWAB TIRE
Bill 12/06/2019 Batteries 8274 ꞏ R8274 567.55

Total LES SCHWAB TIRE 567.55

LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE
Bill 12/23/2019 AR035-00010 5180.2 ꞏ Legal Services 2,412.00

Total LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE 2,412.00

LUBE CENTRAL
Bill 12/20/2019 Lube and Oil change 8205 ꞏ U8205 58.23
Bill 12/30/2019 Oil Change 8207 ꞏ U8207 74.43

Total LUBE CENTRAL 132.66

MAPLESERVICE, INC.
Bill 12/31/2019 Repairs to Backflow valve McK 732.14

Total MAPLESERVICE, INC. 732.14

MCK. COMM. SERVICES DISTRICT
Bill 12/18/2019 Service Period 11/04/9 to 12/02/19 McK 173.47
Bill 12/18/2019 Double Check Valve - Service Period 111/04/19 to 12/02/19 McK 23.18

Total MCK. COMM. SERVICES DISTRICT 196.65

MCKINLEYVILLE ACE HARDWARE
Credit Card Charge 12/20/2019 WD 30 & GFI for McK Station McK 27.55

Total MCKINLEYVILLE ACE HARDWARE 27.55

MCKINLEYVILLE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
Bill 12/19/2019 Annual Membership Investment Non- Profit Organization 5150.6 ꞏ Dues 80.00

Total MCKINLEYVILLE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 80.00

MIDAMERICA HRA
Bill 12/17/2019 January HRA for Retirees 5030.2 ꞏ Health Insurance (R... 17,187.83

Total MIDAMERICA HRA 17,187.83

MILLER FARMS NURSERY
Bill 12/05/2019 Honda Generator Cover 5120.12 ꞏ Equipment Mainten... 64.60

Total MILLER FARMS NURSERY 64.60

MITCHELL, BRISSO, DELANEY & VRIEZE, LLP
Bill 12/04/2019 Services and Prep for Measure R and Association Ordinance 5180.2 ꞏ Legal Services 1,611.50

Total MITCHELL, BRISSO, DELANEY & VRIEZE, LLP 1,611.50

8:00 AM ARCATA FIRE DISTRICT

01/09/20 Expenses by Vendor Detail
Accrual Basis December 2019

Page 2

13



Type Date Memo Account Amount

NATIONAL HOSE TESTING SPECIALTIES
Bill 12/03/2019 2019 Fire Hose Testing 5120.3 ꞏ Hose & Ladder Testi... 4,816.50

Total NATIONAL HOSE TESTING SPECIALTIES 4,816.50

NETWORK MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Bill 12/31/2019 TotalCare Agreement December Billing (received late) 5121.1 ꞏ Computers 2,998.95

Total NETWORK MANAGEMENT SERVICES 2,998.95

OFFICE DEPOT
Bill 12/23/2019 Clorox 409 Degreaser Mad River 26.18
Bill 12/27/2019 Pine sol, clorox, diswasher soap, sponges, paper towels, water, l... Arcata 207.46

Total OFFICE DEPOT 233.64

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC
Bill 12/04/2019 Service Period 10-28-19 to 11-25-19 5126.1 ꞏ P G & E 1,256.76
Credit 12/10/2019 Customer Satisfaction Adjustment for PSPS 800941 ꞏ REFUNDS -250.00
Bill 12/13/2019 Service Period 11-1-19 to 12-03-19 Arcata 948.72
Bill 12/20/2019 Service period 11/15/19 to 12/15/19 Mad River 482.09

Total PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC 2,437.57

PERS / HEALTH
Bill 12/17/2019 Active Employee Premiums 5030.1 ꞏ Health Insurance (E... 36,686.29
Bill 12/17/2019 Retiree Premiums 5030.2 ꞏ Health Insurance (R... 2,946.18
Bill 12/17/2019 Admin Fee for Active Employees (.27%) 5030.1 ꞏ Health Insurance (E... 99.05
Bill 12/17/2019 Admin Fee for Retirees (.27%) 5030.3 ꞏ Retiree Health Admi... 54.81

Total PERS / HEALTH 39,786.33

RECOLOGY ARCATA
Bill 12/06/2019 November billing Arcata 58.35
Bill 12/06/2019 November billing Mad River 58.35

Total RECOLOGY ARCATA 116.70

SEAN CAMPBELL
Bill 12/12/2019 Uniform Reimbursement - Wildland boots & boot wax 5050.1 ꞏ Uniforms 435.90

Total SEAN CAMPBELL 435.90

THE STANDARD
Bill 12/23/2019 January Billing adding West 5030.7 ꞏ Long Term Disability... 660.00

Total THE STANDARD 660.00

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
Credit Card Charge 12/05/2019 Two rolls of stamps 5171 ꞏ POSTAGE & SHIPPING 110.00
Credit Card Charge 12/31/2019 Certified & Return Receipt for Collision Claim Forms E8215 vs. V... 5171 ꞏ POSTAGE & SHIPPING 6.85

Total UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE 116.85

VERIZON WIRELESS
Bill 12/09/2019 November 2-December 1 5060.1 ꞏ Phones & Internet 273.83

Total VERIZON WIRELESS 273.83

VISUAL CONCEPTS
Bill 12/03/2019 5-3-1 Badge Design 5230.16 ꞏ Public Outreach 170.00
Bill 12/04/2019 Logo & numbers for UTV . May invoice received December 3rd. 8241 ꞏ A8241 108.50
Bill 12/17/2019 Invoice from 2016 for name plate stickers 5170 ꞏ OFFICE SUPPLIES 10.88

Total VISUAL CONCEPTS 289.38

WELLS FARGO EQUIPMENT FINANCE
Bill 12/20/2019 Contract 001-0340171-400&401 Pumper Trucks 5300 ꞏ LONG TERM DEBT - I... 22,466.50

Total WELLS FARGO EQUIPMENT FINANCE 22,466.50

TOTAL 281,982.56

8:00 AM ARCATA FIRE DISTRICT

01/09/20 Expenses by Vendor Detail
Accrual Basis December 2019

Page 3

14



Jul - Dec 19 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

TAX REVENUE
800010 ꞏ PROPERTY TAX-CURRENT-SECURED 2,105,694.76 1,089,159.00 1,016,535.76 193.3%
800020 ꞏ PROPERTY TAX-CURRENT-UNSECURED 121,117.61 43,500.00 77,617.61 278.4%
800030 ꞏ PROPERTY TAX-PRIOR YEARS 30,439.62 16,500.00 13,939.62 184.5%
800040 ꞏ SUPPLEMENTAL TAXES- CURRENT 10,050.00 13,500.00 -3,450.00 74.4%
800041 ꞏ SUPPLEMENTAL TAXES-PRIOR YEARS 1,449.60 2,250.00 -800.40 64.4%
800050 ꞏ PROPERTY ASSESSMENTS 1,929,287.28 862,560.00 1,066,727.28 223.7%

Total TAX REVENUE 4,198,038.87 2,027,469.00 2,170,569.87 207.1%

USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY
800190 ꞏ INTEREST INCOME 57.90 11,752.00 -11,694.10 0.5%

Total USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY 57.90 11,752.00 -11,694.10 0.5%

INTERGOVERNMENTAL
800451 ꞏ HOMEOWNERS PROP. TAX REL 3,782.37 13,002.00 -9,219.63 29.1%
800460 ꞏ STATE TIMBER TAX 312.19 499.98 -187.79 62.4%
800580 ꞏ FEDERAL AID IN-LIEU TAX 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
800600 ꞏ OTHER GOVERNMENT AGENCIES

Prop 172 Disbursement 0.00 4,389.00 -4,389.00 0.0%
BLFD Contract for Services 0.00 4,500.00 -4,500.00 0.0%
HSU Contract for Services 37,000.00 37,000.00 0.00 100.0%
Measure Z Funds 31,402.80 62,500.00 -31,097.20 50.2%
NCUAQMD 9,601.00 700.00 8,901.00 1,371.6%
800600 ꞏ OTHER GOVERNMENT AGENCIES - Other 8,577.05

Total 800600 ꞏ OTHER GOVERNMENT AGENCIES 86,580.85 109,089.00 -22,508.15 79.4%

800944 ꞏ GRANT REVENUE
FEMA -SAFER 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
DWR 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 100.0%
800944 ꞏ GRANT REVENUE - Other 7,500.00

Total 800944 ꞏ GRANT REVENUE 9,000.00 0.00 9,000.00 100.0%

800950 ꞏ FIREFIGHTING REIMBURSEMENTS 13,780.75 0.00 13,780.75 100.0%

Total INTERGOVERNMENTAL 113,456.16 122,590.98 -9,134.82 92.5%

CHARGES FOR SERVICES
800155 ꞏ PREVENTION FEES 8,704.40 9,499.98 -795.58 91.6%
800156 ꞏ R1/R2 INSPECTION FEES 18,432.50 19,500.00 -1,067.50 94.5%
800946 ꞏ INCIDENT REVENUE RECOVERY FEES 7,194.59 8,500.02 -1,305.43 84.6%
800700 ꞏ OTHER SERVICES

California Redwood Contract 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
CPR Class Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
800700 ꞏ OTHER SERVICES - Other 3,500.00 0.00 3,500.00 100.0%

Total 800700 ꞏ OTHER SERVICES 3,500.00 0.00 3,500.00 100.0%

Total CHARGES FOR SERVICES 37,831.49 37,500.00 331.49 100.9%

OTHER REVENUE
800920 ꞏ SALE OF FIXED ASSETS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
800940 ꞏ OTHER REVENUE

Donations
Donation - AVFA Mck Station 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Donations - Other 496.00 0.00 496.00 100.0%

Total Donations 496.00 0.00 496.00 100.0%

800940 ꞏ OTHER REVENUE - Other 104.69 5,000.00 -4,895.31 2.1%

Total 800940 ꞏ OTHER REVENUE 600.69 5,000.00 -4,399.31 12.0%

8:01 AM ARCATA FIRE DISTRICT

01/09/20 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July through December 2019

Page 1

15



Jul - Dec 19 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

800941 ꞏ REFUNDS 1,222.44 0.00 1,222.44 100.0%
800942 ꞏ INCIDENT REPORTS 267.82 100.00 167.82 267.8%
OTHER REVENUE - Other 900.00 0.00 900.00 100.0%

Total OTHER REVENUE 2,990.95 5,100.00 -2,109.05 58.6%

Total Income 4,352,375.37 2,204,411.98 2,147,963.39 197.4%

Gross Profit 4,352,375.37 2,204,411.98 2,147,963.39 197.4%

Expense
66910 ꞏ Bank Service Charges 25.00
SALARIES & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

5010 ꞏ SALARIES AND WAGES
5010.1 ꞏ Full-Time 769,327.42 729,919.02 39,408.40 105.4%
5010.2 ꞏ CTO Payout 135,152.07 115,324.98 19,827.09 117.2%
5010.3 ꞏ Settlement Pay/Vacation 780.96 30,000.00 -29,219.04 2.6%
5010.4 ꞏ Holiday Pay 14,826.96 0.00 14,826.96 100.0%
5010.5 ꞏ Deferred Compensation 28,500.00 31,200.00 -2,700.00 91.3%
5010.6 ꞏ Part-Time (Hourly) 38,860.45 41,140.02 -2,279.57 94.5%
5010.8 ꞏ CalFire/OES Pay 19,930.84 0.00 19,930.84 100.0%
5010 ꞏ SALARIES AND WAGES - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 5010 ꞏ SALARIES AND WAGES 1,007,378.70 947,584.02 59,794.68 106.3%

5020 ꞏ RETIREMENT
5020.5 ꞏ CalPERS Section 218 Admin Fee 0.00 650.00 -650.00 0.0%
5020.1 ꞏ CalPERS Retirement 218,827.79 203,479.98 15,347.81 107.5%
5020.3 ꞏ Social Security 2,303.95 2,550.48 -246.53 90.3%
5020.4 ꞏ Medicare 14,384.61 11,128.02 3,256.59 129.3%
5020 ꞏ RETIREMENT - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 5020 ꞏ RETIREMENT 235,516.35 217,808.48 17,707.87 108.1%

5030-GROUP INSURANCE
5030.1 ꞏ Health Insurance (Employees) 260,513.83 240,556.98 19,956.85 108.3%
5030.2 ꞏ Health Insurance (Retirees) 141,419.43 124,120.00 17,299.43 113.9%
5030.3 ꞏ Retiree Health Admin Fees 1,053.44 2,034.00 -980.56 51.8%
5030.4 ꞏ Dental & Life Insurance 18,244.06 18,010.50 233.56 101.3%
5030.5 ꞏ Air Ambulance Insurance 0.00 2,595.00 -2,595.00 0.0%
5030.6 ꞏ Vision 2,091.77 7,000.00 -4,908.23 29.9%
5030.7 ꞏ Long Term Disability Insurance 4,427.50 7,590.00 -3,162.50 58.3%
5030.8 ꞏ Medical Reimbursement-Chief 2,985.00 1,717.07 1,267.93 173.8%

Total 5030-GROUP INSURANCE 430,735.03 403,623.55 27,111.48 106.7%

5033 ꞏ UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 149.00 5,000.00 -4,851.00 3.0%
5035 ꞏ WORKER'S COMPENSATION

5035.1 ꞏ PRIMARY 47,579.00 47,579.00 0.00 100.0%
5035.2 ꞏ EXCESS 22,606.00 22,606.00 0.00 100.0%
5035.3 ꞏ ADMIN FEE 14,037.00 14,037.00 0.00 100.0%

Total 5035 ꞏ WORKER'S COMPENSATION 84,222.00 84,222.00 0.00 100.0%

Total SALARIES & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 1,758,001.08 1,658,238.05 99,763.03 106.0%

SERVICE & SUPPLIES
5050 ꞏ CLOTHING & PERSONAL SUPPLIES

5050.1 ꞏ Uniforms 9,362.67 18,000.00 -8,637.33 52.0%
5050.2 ꞏ Station Boots 351.38 2,000.00 -1,648.62 17.6%

Total 5050 ꞏ CLOTHING & PERSONAL SUPPLIES 9,714.05 20,000.00 -10,285.95 48.6%

5060 ꞏ COMMUNICATIONS
5060.1 ꞏ Phones & Internet 10,992.46 17,500.02 -6,507.56 62.8%
5060.2 ꞏ Alarm Monitoring 1,347.83 1,500.00 -152.17 89.9%
5060.3 ꞏ Communication - Miscellaneous 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%
5060.4 ꞏ HCFCA  Radio System Annual Fee 0.00 1,600.00 -1,600.00 0.0%

Total 5060 ꞏ COMMUNICATIONS 12,340.29 21,100.02 -8,759.73 58.5%

8:01 AM ARCATA FIRE DISTRICT

01/09/20 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July through December 2019

Page 2

16



Jul - Dec 19 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

5080 ꞏ FOOD
5080.1 ꞏ Food/Rehab Supplies 421.17 1,500.00 -1,078.83 28.1%
5080.2 ꞏ Drinking Water 67.64 500.00 -432.36 13.5%

Total 5080 ꞏ FOOD 488.81 2,000.00 -1,511.19 24.4%

5090 ꞏ HOUSEHOLD EXPENSE
5090.1 ꞏ Station Supplies

Arcata 598.09 412.50 185.59 145.0%
Mad River 411.45 412.50 -1.05 99.7%
McK 726.95 825.00 -98.05 88.1%
5090.1 ꞏ Station Supplies - Other 4.33 0.00 4.33 100.0%

Total 5090.1 ꞏ Station Supplies 1,740.82 1,650.00 90.82 105.5%

5090.2 ꞏ Garbage Service
Mad River 291.75 0.00 291.75 100.0%
McK 1,037.50 0.00 1,037.50 100.0%
Arcata 233.40 0.00 233.40 100.0%
5090.2 ꞏ Garbage Service - Other 262.39 2,295.00 -2,032.61 11.4%

Total 5090.2 ꞏ Garbage Service 1,825.04 2,295.00 -469.96 79.5%

Total 5090 ꞏ HOUSEHOLD EXPENSE 3,565.86 3,945.00 -379.14 90.4%

5100 ꞏ INSURANCE
5100.1 ꞏ Liability Insurance 18,018.00 18,018.00 0.00 100.0%

Total 5100 ꞏ INSURANCE 18,018.00 18,018.00 0.00 100.0%

5120 ꞏ MAINTENANCE-EQUIPMENT
5120.1 ꞏ Fire Apparatus

8241 ꞏ A8241 108.50
8271 ꞏ R8271 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
8258 ꞏ WT8258 140.81 0.00 140.81 100.0%
8239 ꞏ E8239 2,325.11 0.00 2,325.11 100.0%
8217 ꞏ E8217 298.11 0.00 298.11 100.0%
8216 ꞏ E8216 517.16 0.00 517.16 100.0%
8274 ꞏ R8274 843.52 0.00 843.52 100.0%
8283 ꞏ T8283 1,716.76 0.00 1,716.76 100.0%
8215 ꞏ E8215 280.63 0.00 280.63 100.0%
8211 ꞏ E8211 315.05 0.00 315.05 100.0%
5120.1 ꞏ Fire Apparatus - Other 8.96 30,000.00 -29,991.04 0.0%

Total 5120.1 ꞏ Fire Apparatus 6,554.61 30,000.00 -23,445.39 21.8%

5120.2 ꞏ Officers Vehicles
8209 ꞏ U8209 85.26 0.00 85.26 100.0%
8208 ꞏ U8208 740.32 0.00 740.32 100.0%
8207 ꞏ U8207 859.88 0.00 859.88 100.0%
8206 ꞏ U8206 75.15 0.00 75.15 100.0%
8205 ꞏ U8205 1,370.49 0.00 1,370.49 100.0%
5120.2 ꞏ Officers Vehicles - Other 7.58 5,000.00 -4,992.42 0.2%

Total 5120.2 ꞏ Officers Vehicles 3,138.68 5,000.00 -1,861.32 62.8%

5120.3 ꞏ Hose & Ladder Testing 6,209.80 6,800.00 -590.20 91.3%
5120.4 ꞏ Hose Repair 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%
5120.5 ꞏ Truck 8283 Aerial Inspection 0.00 600.00 -600.00 0.0%
5120.6 ꞏ Truck 8283 Aerial Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5120.7 ꞏ SCBA 438.63 6,000.00 -5,561.37 7.3%
5120.8 ꞏ Hydraulic Rescue Tool Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5120.9 ꞏ Power Tools Maintenance 19.38 350.00 -330.62 5.5%
5120.10 ꞏ AED Annual Maintenance 4,242.00 5,200.00 -958.00 81.6%
5120.11 ꞏ Fire Extinguisher Maintenance 93.12 1,200.00 -1,106.88 7.8%
5120.12 ꞏ Equipment Maintenance - Misc 251.04 500.00 -248.96 50.2%

Total 5120 ꞏ MAINTENANCE-EQUIPMENT 20,947.26 56,150.00 -35,202.74 37.3%

8:01 AM ARCATA FIRE DISTRICT

01/09/20 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July through December 2019

Page 3

17



Jul - Dec 19 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

5121 ꞏ MAINTENANCE-ELECTRONICS
5121.1 ꞏ Computers 16,565.40 1,000.00 15,565.40 1,656.5%
5121.2 ꞏ Radios, Pagers, & FireCom 0.00 400.00 -400.00 0.0%
5121.3 ꞏ Batteries 96.16 1,500.00 -1,403.84 6.4%

Total 5121 ꞏ MAINTENANCE-ELECTRONICS 16,661.56 2,900.00 13,761.56 574.5%

5122 ꞏ FUEL 16,121.23 17,500.02 -1,378.79 92.1%

5126 ꞏ UTILITIES
5126.1 ꞏ P G & E

Arcata 4,901.64 0.00 4,901.64 100.0%
Mad River 2,095.29 0.00 2,095.29 100.0%
McK 6,674.90 0.00 6,674.90 100.0%
5126.1 ꞏ P G & E - Other 1,256.76 15,000.00 -13,743.24 8.4%

Total 5126.1 ꞏ P G & E 14,928.59 15,000.00 -71.41 99.5%

5126.2 ꞏ Water & Sewer
Arcata 592.62
Mad River 1,125.53 0.00 1,125.53 100.0%
McK 1,236.89 0.00 1,236.89 100.0%
5126.2 ꞏ Water & Sewer - Other 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.0%

Total 5126.2 ꞏ Water & Sewer 2,955.04 3,000.00 -44.96 98.5%

Total 5126 ꞏ UTILITIES 17,883.63 18,000.00 -116.37 99.4%

5130 ꞏ MAINTENANCE-STRUCTURE
5130.1 ꞏ General Structure Maintenance

Arcata 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Mad River 831.01 0.00 831.01 100.0%
McK 157.14 0.00 157.14 100.0%
5130.1 ꞏ General Structure Maintenance - Other 41.70 1,000.00 -958.30 4.2%

Total 5130.1 ꞏ General Structure Maintenance 1,029.85 1,000.00 29.85 103.0%

5130.2 ꞏ Grounds Maintenance
Arcata 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Mad River 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
McK 742.42 0.00 742.42 100.0%
5130.2 ꞏ Grounds Maintenance - Other 718.75 500.00 218.75 143.8%

Total 5130.2 ꞏ Grounds Maintenance 1,461.17 500.00 961.17 292.2%

5130.3 ꞏ Emergency Power Maintenance
Arcata 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Mad River 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
McK 436.09 0.00 436.09 100.0%
5130.3 ꞏ Emergency Power Maintenance - Other 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0%

Total 5130.3 ꞏ Emergency Power Maintenance 436.09 2,000.00 -1,563.91 21.8%

Total 5130 ꞏ MAINTENANCE-STRUCTURE 2,927.11 3,500.00 -572.89 83.6%

5140 ꞏ MEDICAL SUPPLIES 999.31 2,002.00 -1,002.69 49.9%
5150 ꞏ DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS

5150.1 ꞏ I Am Responding Annual Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5150.2 ꞏ Scheduling Program Annual Fee 2,547.00 2,547.00 0.00 100.0%
5150.4 ꞏ Parcel Quest Annual Fees 1,799.00 1,800.00 -1.00 99.9%
5150.5 ꞏ Firehouse RMS Annual Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5150.6 ꞏ Dues 1,272.48 1,200.00 72.48 106.0%
5150.7 ꞏ Subscriptions 384.00 1,900.00 -1,516.00 20.2%
5150.8 ꞏ Google Services 1,328.91 900.00 428.91 147.7%
5150.9 ꞏ Emergency Reporting Software 3,218.00 3,218.00 0.00 100.0%
5150.10 ꞏ eDispatches Software 0.00 1,750.00 -1,750.00 0.0%
5150.11 ꞏ Humboldt Co. Fire Chiefs' Assoc 0.00 800.00 -800.00 0.0%
5150 ꞏ DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS - Other 204.99

Total 5150 ꞏ DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 10,754.38 14,115.00 -3,360.62 76.2%

8:01 AM ARCATA FIRE DISTRICT

01/09/20 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July through December 2019

Page 4

18



Jul - Dec 19 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

5160 ꞏ MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE 900.00 1,000.00 -100.00 90.0%
5170 ꞏ OFFICE SUPPLIES 693.30 2,250.00 -1,556.70 30.8%

5171 ꞏ POSTAGE & SHIPPING 285.08 1,000.00 -714.92 28.5%
5180 ꞏ PROFESSIONAL & SPECIAL SERVICES

5180.1 ꞏ Dispatch Contract (CalFire) 42,851.05 62,670.00 -19,818.95 68.4%
5180.2 ꞏ Legal Services 20,178.02 20,002.00 176.02 100.9%
5180.3 ꞏ Audit Services 8,113.70 10,000.00 -1,886.30 81.1%
5180.4 ꞏ Accountant/Bookkeeping 3,722.00 10,000.00 -6,278.00 37.2%
5180.5 ꞏ Shredding Services 65.00 400.00 -335.00 16.3%
5180.6 ꞏ CAD Interface Maintenance Fee 2,000.00 1,750.00 250.00 114.3%
5180.7 ꞏ HBF Fire Prevention Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5180.8 ꞏ OPEB Report (GASB) 3,000.00 7,000.00 -4,000.00 42.9%
5180.9 ꞏ Medical exam/Drug Screening 1,457.00 5,000.00 -3,543.00 29.1%
5180.11 ꞏ Background Checks 4,245.70 3,000.00 1,245.70 141.5%
5180.12 ꞏ IT Services 3,100.95 13,002.00 -9,901.05 23.8%
5180.15 ꞏ Miscellaneous Services 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%
5180.16 ꞏ Human Resource Services 6,031.84 7,500.00 -1,468.16 80.4%

Total 5180 ꞏ PROFESSIONAL & SPECIAL SERVICES 94,765.26 140,824.00 -46,058.74 67.3%

5190 ꞏ PUBLICATIONS & NOTICES 312.00 1,000.00 -688.00 31.2%
5200 ꞏ LEASES-EQUIPMENT

5200.1 ꞏ Copier 3,359.13 3,252.00 107.13 103.3%

Total 5200 ꞏ LEASES-EQUIPMENT 3,359.13 3,252.00 107.13 103.3%

5210 ꞏ RENT 56,000.00 48,000.00 8,000.00 116.7%
5230 ꞏ SPECIAL DISTRICT EXPENSE

5230.1 ꞏ Property Tax Admin Fee 0.00 54,458.00 -54,458.00 0.0%
5230.2 ꞏ Tax Roll Direct Charge Fee 6,217.00 5,228.00 989.00 118.9%
5230.3 ꞏ LAFCO Annual Fee 0.00 4,357.00 -4,357.00 0.0%
5230.4 ꞏ Greenway Partners 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0%
5230.5 ꞏ Assessment Adjustments/Refunds 108.00 1,000.00 -892.00 10.8%
5230.6 ꞏ Public Education Supplies 657.33 1,500.00 -842.67 43.8%

5230.7 ꞏ Fire Prevention Supplies 329.40 1,500.00 -1,170.60 22.0%
5230.8 ꞏ Certifications 277.00 1,000.00 -723.00 27.7%
5230.9 ꞏ Elections 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5230.10 ꞏ Recruitment 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%
5230.11 ꞏ Bank Fees 125.00 502.00 -377.00 24.9%
5230.12 ꞏ DWR Grant Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5230.14 ꞏ Recognition, Shields, Badges 39.99 1,000.00 -960.01 4.0%
5230.15 ꞏ Health & Wellness 0.00 530.00 -530.00 0.0%
5230.16 ꞏ Public Outreach 6,048.32 20,000.00 -13,951.68 30.2%
5230 ꞏ SPECIAL DISTRICT EXPENSE - Other 562.95

Total 5230 ꞏ SPECIAL DISTRICT EXPENSE 14,364.99 93,575.00 -79,210.01 15.4%

5234 ꞏ TRAINING
5234.1 ꞏ Staff Training 1,474.78 0.00 1,474.78 100.0%
5234.2 ꞏ Training Supplies 662.87 2,000.00 -1,337.13 33.1%
5234.3 ꞏ CPR Program 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 5234 ꞏ TRAINING 2,137.65 2,000.00 137.65 106.9%

5280 ꞏ OTHER GOVERNMENT AGENCIES
5280.2 ꞏ HCFCA  Air Trailer Annual Fee 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%

Total 5280 ꞏ OTHER GOVERNMENT AGENCIES 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%

5300 ꞏ LONG TERM DEBT - INTEREST 22,466.50 15,209.00 7,257.50 147.7%

8:01 AM ARCATA FIRE DISTRICT

01/09/20 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July through December 2019

Page 5

19



Jul - Dec 19 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

5370 ꞏ EQUIPMENT PURCHASES
5370.1 ꞏ PPE - Structural 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5370.2 ꞏ PPE - Wildland 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5370.3 ꞏ PPE - VLU 0.00 100.00 -100.00 0.0%
5370.5 ꞏ Equipment Fabrication 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%
5370.6 ꞏ Firefighting Equipment 704.38 1,000.00 -295.62 70.4%
5370.8 ꞏ Computer Systems Upgrade 869.93 3,000.00 -2,130.07 29.0%
5370 ꞏ EQUIPMENT PURCHASES - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 5370 ꞏ EQUIPMENT PURCHASES 1,574.31 4,600.00 -3,025.69 34.2%

Total SERVICE & SUPPLIES 327,279.71 492,940.04 -165,660.33 66.4%

OTHER BUDGET FUNDING REQUIRED
CAPITAL EXPENSE

5360 ꞏ STRUCTURES & IMPROVEMENTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total CAPITAL EXPENSE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

EQUIPMENT LOAN DEBT SERVICE
5290 ꞏ LONG TERM DEBT - PRINCIPAL 0.00 152,696.00 -152,696.00 0.0%

Total EQUIPMENT LOAN DEBT SERVICE 0.00 152,696.00 -152,696.00 0.0%

MANDATORY RESERVES
CalPERS Unfunded Liability 473,011.00 473,011.00 0.00 100.0%

Total MANDATORY RESERVES 473,011.00 473,011.00 0.00 100.0%

Total OTHER BUDGET FUNDING REQUIRED 473,011.00 625,707.00 -152,696.00 75.6%

Total Expense 2,558,316.79 2,776,885.09 -218,568.30 92.1%

Net Ordinary Income 1,794,058.58 -572,473.11 2,366,531.69 -313.4%

Other Income/Expense
Other Expense

ADJUSTMENTS TO CONVERT TO GAAP
ACCRUED VACATION 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Assets to be depreciated 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Basis of disposed fixed assets 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Pension expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Post Employment Benefits 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Principal payment on LTD 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5310 ꞏ DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total ADJUSTMENTS TO CONVERT TO GAAP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total Other Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Net Other Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Net Income 1,794,058.58 -572,473.11 2,366,531.69 -313.4%

8:01 AM ARCATA FIRE DISTRICT

01/09/20 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July through December 2019

Page 6

20



STAFF REPORT Item 8.1 

Date: January 14, 2020 
To: Board of Directors, Arcata Fire District 
From:  Justin McDonald, Fire Chief 
Subject: Measure R Update 

Background 
Following the November Special Meeting, staff submitted Resolution 19-214 to the 
Office of Elections and the proposed funding measure has been given the name 
Measure R for the March 2020 ballot.  

Recommendation 
This item will be a standing agenda item until the election is completed.  It will be an 
opportunity for staff and the Board to receive updates regarding Measure R; information 
only with no action taken.  

• District Funds Requested/Required
☒ No Impact/Not Applicable
☐ Funding Source Confirmed:
☐ Other:

Alternatives 
The Board has the following alternatives: 

1. Take no action
2. With direction, refer the topic back to staff for further consideration

Attachments 
None 

21



STAFF REPORT Item 9.1 

Date: January 14, 2020   
To: Board of Directors, Arcata Fire District 
From:  Justin McDonald, Fire Chief  
Subject: Consider Accepting the Fiscal Year 2018-19 Financial Audit Report 

Background 
Audit firm JJACPA Inc. has completed the fiscal year 2018-19 financial audit for the 
District.  Following the field visit, interviews, and email communications with input from 
District staff, the final draft audit is being presented to the Board this evening. Staff 
opted not to have Mr. Arch make the personal presentation, however, the Board still has 
the option to record any questions they may still have for him and postpone acceptance 
of the audit until the next meeting.  
Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Board consider the information provided, take public comments, 
discuss and accept the Fiscal Year 2018-19 Audit.   

District Funds Requested/Required 
☐ No Impact/Not Applicable
☐ Funding Source Confirmed:
☐ Other:

Alternatives 
The Board has the following alternatives: 

1. Take no action
2. With direction, refer the topic back to staff for further consideration

Attachments 
Attachment 1 – Draft Financial Statements with Independent Auditor’s Report 
June 30, 2019 and Communications Letter for Internal Controls 

22



ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED 

JUNE 30, 2019 

Attachment 1

23



 

This page intentionally left blank. 

24 24



25



Arcata Fire District, California 
Annual Financial Report 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 

Table of Contents 

ii 

 Page 
Basic Financial Statements, Continued: 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements .................................................................................... 25 

Required Supplementary Information: 

Pension Plan: 
Schedule of Contributions ........................................................................................................ 56 
Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability ............................... 57 

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB): 
Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios ........................................ 58 
Schedule of Contributions ........................................................................................................ 59 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards ...................................... 61 

26 26



27



Arcata Fire District, California 
Annual Financial Report 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 

iv 

Organizational Chart 

28 28



Arcata Fire District, California 
Annual Financial Report 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 

v 

District Map 

29 29



Arcata Fire District, California 
Annual Financial Report 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 

 

vi 
 

Stations and facilities 
 

Arcata Station. 
631 9th Street, Arcata CA 95521 

 
------ 
Mad River Station. 
3235 Janes Road, Arcata CA 95521 

 
------ 
McKinleyville Station & District Headquarters. 
2149 Central Avenue, McKinleyville CA 95519 

30 30



 

7080 Donlon Way, Suite 204, Dublin, CA 94568 ● phone (925) 556-6200 ● fax: (510) 217-5930 
1102 South Main Street, #1, Fort Bragg, CA  95437 ● phone (707) 964-6325 

www.jjacpa.com 
 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the Honorable Chairman and District Board 
of the Arcata Fire Protection District 
Arcata, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Arcata Fire Protection District (District), as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. The prior year summarized 
comparative information has been derived from the District’s June 30, 2018 basic financial statements with our 
report dated October 20, 2018. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Opinions  

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position and the budgetary comparison information of the Arcata Fire Protection District as of June 30, 
2019, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

31 31



 

 
 
 

Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s 
discussion and analysis on pages 3–8, the District’s Schedule of Contributions on page 56, the Schedule 
of the District’s proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability on pages 57, the Schedule of Changes 
in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios on page 58, and the Schedule of Contributions on page 59 

be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers 
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 28, 2019 on 
our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  

That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 

       JJACPA, Inc. 
          JJACPA, Inc. 
          Dublin, California 

 
October 28, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

32 32



33



34



35



36



37



38



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9 39



40



Arcata Fire District
Statements of Net Position  

June 30, 2019 
(with comparative balances for June 30, 2018)

2019 2018
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and investments 3,177,272$   3,378,909$   
Receivables, net 94,904  110,581  
Prepaid Expense 28,787  21,269  

Total current assets 3,300,963  3,510,759  
Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets, net 3,677,823  4,244,335  
Total noncurrent assets 3,677,823  4,244,335  

Total assets 6,978,786  7,755,094  

Deferred outflows related to pensions 1,666,614  2,181,745  
Deferred outflows related to OPEB 281,304  263,236  

Total assets and deferred outflows 8,926,704$   10,200,075$   

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 44,244$   50,508$   
Salaries and benefits payable 155,156  165,805  
Interest payable 7,605  11,233  
Compensated absences - current portion 28,617  34,090  
Current portion of long-term liabilities 152,696  145,439  

Total current liabilities 388,318  407,075  
Noncurrent liabilities:

Net pension obligation 5,425,143  5,481,918  
Compensated absences 83,896  72,998  
Net OPEB obligation 10,465,268  9,676,986  
Wells Fargo Equipment Finance 152,096  304,792  
Total noncurrent liabilities 16,126,403  15,536,694  

Total liabilities 16,514,721  15,943,769  

Deferred inflows related to pensions 108,779  127,490  
Deferred inflows related to OPEB 374,158  682,066  

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 3,373,031  3,939,543  
Unrestricted (deficit) (11,443,985)  (10,492,793)  

Total net position (deficit) (8,070,954)  (6,553,250)  

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and net position 8,926,704$   10,200,075$    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

Governmental Activities

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

11 41



Arcata Fire District
Statement of Activities

For the year ended June 30, 2019
(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2018)

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions 2019 2018
Governmental activities:

Fire protection - operations 6,091,904$      66,258$   106,100$   -$  (5,919,546)$   (5,168,597)$  
Interest on long-term debt 18,838  -  -  - (18,838)          (26,872)         
Total governmental activities 6,110,742$      66,258$   106,100$   -$  (5,938,384)$   (5,195,469)$  

General revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes 3,986,818  3,877,091  
State timber yield tax 1,565  1,513  

Investment earnings 39,859  34,791  
Other Revenues 392,438   398,806  

Total general revenues 4,420,680  4,312,201  
Change in net position (1,517,704)  (883,268)  
Net position:

Net position - beginning (6,553,250)  625,272  
Prior period adjustment -  (6,295,254)
Net position - beginning, as adjusted (6,553,250)  (5,669,982)  
Net position - ending (8,070,954)$   (6,553,250)$  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

Program Revenues

Net (Expense)
Revenue and
Changes in
Net Position

12
42



FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 43



Arcata Fire District
Balance Sheet

General Fund 
June 30, 2019
(With comparative totals for June 30, 2018)

 2019 2018
ASSETS

Cash and investments 3,177,272$   3,378,909$   
Receivables:

Grants 9,600 36,639  
Interest 9,500 8,000
Intergovernmental 62,500 -  
Other receivable 13,304 65,942  
Prepaid items 28,787 21,269  
Total assets 3,300,963$   3,510,759$   

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $44,244 50,508$   
Salaries and benefits payable 155,156 165,805
Interest payable 7,605 11,233  
Compensated absences 28,617 34,090

Total liabilities 235,622  261,636  
Deferred inflows: Unavailable revenue 62,500 62,543  

Fund balances:
Nonspendable for prepaid items 28,787 21,269
Unassigned 2,974,054 3,165,311  

Total fund balances 3,002,841  3,186,580  
Total liabilities, deferred inflows and fund balances 3,300,963$   3,510,759$   

Major Fund

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

General Fund

14 44



 Arcata Fire District
 Reconciliation of the General Fund Balance Sheet

to the Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2019

Total fund balances reported on the governmental fund balance sheet 3,002,841$    

CAPITAL ASSETS

3,677,823

LONG-TERM ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Deferred outflows 1,947,918  
Deferred inflows (482,937)  1,464,981  

Deferred inflows for unavailable revenue in 
the current period are recognized as 
revenue in the Statement of Activities 62,500

Net pension obligation (5,425,143)  
Compensated absences (83,896)  
Net OPEB obligation (10,465,268) 
Long term debt (304,792)  (16,279,099)  

Net position of governmental activities (8,070,954)$   

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement 
of Net Position are different from those reported in the 
Governmental Funds due to the following:

Capital assets amount reported in 
governmental activities are not current 
assets or financial resources and therefore 
are not reported in the Governmental Funds 
balance sheet.

Pension and OPEB obligations result in 
deferred outflows and inflows of resources 
associated with the actuarial value of 
contributions, assets, and liabilities

Long-term liabilities is not due and payable 
in the current period and therefore is not 
reported in the Governmental Funds 

lan  he t

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

15 45



 Arcata Fire District
 Reconciliation of Fund Basis Balance Sheet to Government-wide

 Statement of Net Position

Governmental Activities

June 30, 2019

General

Fund Changes Statement of
ASSETS Balance Sheet Reclass in GAAP Net Position

Current assets: 
Cash and investments 3,177,272$     -$  -$ 3,177,272$     
Restricted cash and investments -  -  - -
Receivables (net) 94,904  -  - 94,904  
Other assets 28,787  -  - 28,787  

Total current assets 3,300,963  -  - 3,300,963  
Noncurrent assets:     

Capital assets, net -  -  3,677,823 3,677,823  
Total noncurrent assets -  -  3,677,823  3,677,823  
Total assets 3,300,963  - 3,677,823 6,978,786  

Deferred outflows related to pensions -  -  1,666,614 1,666,614  
Deferred outflows related to OPEB -  -  281,304 281,304  

Total assets and deferred outflows 3,300,963$     -$  5,625,741$   8,926,704$     

Current liabilities:     
Accounts payable & accrued liabilities $44,244 -$  -$ 44,244$   
Salaries and benefits payable 155,156  - - 155,156  
Interest payable 7,605  - - 7,605  
Compensated absences 28,617  - - 28,617  
Current portion of long-term liabilities -  -  152,696 152,696  

Total current liabilities 235,622  - 152,696 388,318  
Noncurrent liabilities:     

Net pension obligation -  -  5,425,143 5,425,143  
Compensated absences -  -  83,896 83,896  
Net OPEB obligation -  -  10,465,268 10,465,268  
Due after one year -  -  152,096 152,096  
Total noncurrent liabilities -  -  16,126,403  16,126,403  
Total liabilities 235,622  - 16,279,099 16,514,721  

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows: Unavailable revenue 62,500 - (62,500) -  
Deferred inflows related to pensions -  -  108,779 108,779  
Deferred inflows related to OPEB -  -  374,158 374,158  

62,500  - 420,437 482,937  

Fund balances:
Restricted 28,787  (28,787) - -  
Unassigned 2,974,054  (2,974,054) - -  

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets - 3,373,031 3,373,031  
Unrestricted - 3,002,841 (14,446,826) (11,443,985)  

Total fund balances/net position      3,002,841  - (11,073,795) (8,070,954)  

3,300,963$     -$  5,625,741$   8,926,704$   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

FUND BALANCES/NET POSITION 

LIABILITIES

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and net 
position      

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

16 46



  Arcata Fire District
 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

General Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2019
(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2018)

2019 2018
REVENUES:
Property taxes 3,986,818$  3,877,091$   
State timber yield tax 1,565 1,513  
Use of money and property 39,859 34,791
Intergovernmental 106,143 230,262  
Charges for services 66,258 62,314  
Other revenues 392,438 319,728  

Total revenues 4,593,081 4,525,699  

EXPENDITURES:
Fire protection:

Salaries 2,169,643 1,936,061  
Retirement 893,114 809,045  
Group Insurance 759,248 724,803  
Worker's Compensation 67,410 66,967  
Uniforms 16,584 16,359  
Communication 31,172 25,843  
Food 1,151 1,868  
Household Expense 6,614 7,747  
Insurance 16,975 13,073  
Management Equipment 58,436 52,469  
Maintenance-Electronics 597 2,321  
Transportation and travel 35,704 32,353  
Utilities 35,904 33,722  
Maintenance-Structure 3,899 10,828  
Medical Supplies 2,233 2,314  
Dues & Subscription 15,820 17,306  
Miscellaneous 846 988 
Office supplies 1,495 1,611  
Postage and shipping 935 995 
Professional and Specialized service 235,386 213,833  
Publications and Notices 289 288 
Copies 7,042 6,807  
Leases - Structures 96,000 96,000  
Special District expense 93,061 126,930  
Small tools and equipment 48,102 28,863  
Training 14,883 24,889  
Total Fire protection 4,612,543 4,254,283

(continued)

Major Fund

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

General Fund 

17 47



Arcata Fire District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

General Fund, continued

For the year ended June 30, 2019

Debt service:
Principal 145,439 138,526
Interest expense 18,838 26,872

Total expenditures 4,776,820 4,419,681  

REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (183,739)  106,018  

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: 
Transfers to Arcata Volunteer Fire Association - (14,842)  
Proceeds from sales of assets - 31,377 

Total other financing sources - 16,535 

Net change in fund balances (183,739)  122,553  

FUND BALANCES:      

Beginning of year 3,186,580 3,064,027

End of year 3,002,841$  3,186,580$   

(concluded)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

18 48



This page intentionally left blank.

1949 49



 Arcata Fire District
 Reconciliation of Fund Based Statements to 

 Government-wide Statement of Activities

For the year ended June 30, 2019

Debt
Service/

Fund Based Compensated
Functions/Programs Totals Absences Depreciation

Governmental activities:   
Fire protection - operations 4,612,543$  10,898$   286,798$  
Debt service 164,277  (145,439)  -  

Total governmental activities 4,776,820$  (134,541)$   286,798$  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

20 50



Arcata Fire District
Reconciliation of Fund Based Statements to 

 Government-wide Statement of Activities, continued

For the year ended June 30, 2019

Capital
Asset Government-

(Additions)/ wide
Retirements OPEB Pension Totals

279,714$   462,306$  439,645$   6,091,904$   
-  -  -  18,838  

279,714$   462,306$  439,645$   6,110,742$   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

21 51



 Arcata Fire District
 Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

 Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the

      Statement of Activities

 For the year ended June 30, 2019

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (183,739)$   

CAPITAL ASSET TRANSACTIONS

Capital asset additions 34,695  
Depreciation expense (286,798)  
Capital asset retirements (314,409)  (566,512)  

LONG TERM DEBT PAYMENTS

Capital leases 145,439  

CHANGES IN NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS

Change in net pension obligation (439,645)
Change in long-term compensated absences (10,898)
Change in Net OPEB obligation (462,306) (912,849)  

(43)  

Change in net position of governmental activities (1,517,704)$     

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because of the following:

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported
as expenditures in governmental funds:

Governmental Funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is capitalized
and allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense:

Issuance of long term debt is an other financing source in the
governmental funds, but in the Statement of Net Position the issuance
increases long term liabilities:

Some receivables are deferred in the governmental funds because the
amounts do not represent current financial resources that are
recognized under the accrual basis in the Statement of Activities.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

22 52



 Arcata Fire District
 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances  - 

 Budget to Actual - General Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2019

Variance
 With Amended

Original Amended Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES:
Property taxes 3,982,600  3,982,600  3,986,818$  4,218$   
State timber yield tax 714  714  1,565  851  
Use of money and property 23,500  23,500  39,859  16,359  
Intergovernmental 169,240  169,240  106,143  (63,097)  
Charges for services 62,437  62,437  66,258  3,821  
Other revenues 277,799  277,799  392,438  114,639  

Total revenues 4,516,290  4,516,290  4,593,081  76,791  

EXPENDITURES:
Fire protection:

Salaries 1,918,664  1,918,664  2,169,643  (250,979)  
Benefits 1,624,182  1,624,182  1,649,724 (25,542)  
Retiree health insurance 72,006  72,006  70,048 1,958  
Service and supplies 725,749  725,749  723,128  2,621  

Debt service:
Principal 145,439  145,439  145,439  - 
Interest 22,466  22,466  18,838  3,628  

Total expenditures 4,508,506  4,508,506  4,776,820  (271,942)  

REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 7,784  7,784  (183,739)  (191,523)  

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers to Arcata Volunteer Fire Association - -  -  - 
Proceeds from sales of assets - -  -  - 

Total other financing sources - -  -  - 

Net change in fund balances 7,784  7,784  (183,739)  (191,523)  

FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year 3,186,580  3,186,580  3,186,580  - 

End of year 3,194,364$  3,194,364$ 3,002,841$  (191,523)$   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

23 53



NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2454 54



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 

25 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the District have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental 
units.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting 
body for governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  On June 15, 1987, GASB 
issued a codification of the existing Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards 
which, along with subsequent GASB pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations), 
constitutes GAAP for governmental units. The District applies all GASB pronouncements to its 
activities. 

A. Description of the Reporting Entity

The Arcata Fire Protection District (District) was incorporated on June 1, 1944 as a Special District 
under the laws and regulations of the State of California (State).  The District was formed with the 
approval of the Humboldt County Board of Supervisors, to provide more efficient fire protection 
and emergency medical services. The principal act that governs the District is the Fire Protection 
District Law of 1987. 

The District provides fire protection, rescue, and emergency medical services to the area 
surrounding the City of Arcata, including McKinleyville, Manilla, and Bayside.  A five-member 
board of directors, elected by voters, governs the District. 

These financial statements present financial information for the District, which represents the 
primary government. No component units were determined to exist; therefore, none are included 
in these financial statements. 

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The statement of net position and statement of activities display information about the reporting 
government as a whole.  They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. 
The statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities.  Governmental 
activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other 
nonexchange revenues. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to residents for fire protection 
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment 2) grants and contributions for fire 
protection services. All taxes and internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues 
rather than program revenues.  

55 55



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 
 

 

26 
 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 
B. Basis of Presentation, continued 
 
In the government-wide financial statement, equity is reported as net position, and is made up of 
cumulative net earnings from operations, non-operating revenue and expenses, and capital 
contributions. The net position is reported in the following categories: 
 
Net investment in capital assets - consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, 
reduced by balance owed on any borrowings used in the acquisition, construction or improvement 
of those assets. 
 
Restricted - refers to that portion of net position that has constraints upon its use imposed by 
contributors, creditors, such as through debt covenants, or by laws of other governmental entities, 
or constraints by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  
 
Unrestricted - net position is the component of net position that does not meet the definition of 
either “net investment in capital assets” or “restricted.” 
 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements 
 

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is 
considered to be a separate accounting entity.  Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate 
set of self-balancing accounts, which constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and 
expenditures/expenses.  Funds are organized by governmental category.  A fund is considered 
major if it is the primary operating fund of the District or meets the following criteria: 
 

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual 
governmental fund are at least ten percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that 
category or type; and, 

 
b. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual 

governmental fund are at least five percent of the corresponding total for all governmental 
funds combined. 

 

C. Measurement Focus 
 

Measurement focus is a term used to describe which transactions are recorded within the various 
financial statements. 
 

On the government-wide Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, governmental 
and business-type activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus. 
The accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of net income, 
financial position, and cash flows. All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) 
associated with activities are reported. Fund equity is classified as Net Position, which serves as 
an indicator of financial position. 
 
 
 
 

56 56



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 

27 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

Governmental Fund Financial Statements, continued 

C. Measurement Focus, continued

In the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement focus is used for 
governmental funds. Only current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on the 
balance sheets.  The operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable  
financial resources during a given period.  These funds use fund balance as their measure of 
available spendable financial resources at the end of the period. 

D. Basis of Accounting

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities, governmental 
activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting.  Under the accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability 
is incurred, or economic asset used.  Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities 
resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes 
place. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modified accrual basis 
of accounting.  Under this modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when 
“measurable and available.”  Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate 
the amount.  Available means the amount is collectible within the current period or soon enough 
thereafter to pay current liabilities. The District considers all revenues reported in the 
governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within 60 days after year end, 
with the exception of grant revenues. Grant revenues are considered to be available if collected 
within 180 days of the end of the current fiscal period. 

Property taxes, fire flow taxes, permits, charges for services and interest associated with the 
current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized 
as revenues of the current fiscal year. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable 
and available only when cash is received by the government. Expenditures (including capital 
outlay) are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. 

E. Cash Deposits and Investments

The District’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, 
and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition. 

The District pools cash and investments from all funds for the purpose of increasing income 
through investment activities.  Highly liquid money market investments with maturities of one year 
or less at time of purchase are stated at amortized cost.  All other investments are stated at fair 
value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain 
Investments and for External Investment Pools.  Market value is used as fair value for those 
securities for which market quotations are readily available. 

57 57



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 
 

 

28 
 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 

F. Interfund Receivables and Payables 
 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds that may 
result in amounts owed between funds.  Those related to goods and services type transactions 
are classified as “due to and from other funds.” Long-term interfund loans (noncurrent portion) are 
reported as “advances from and to other funds.” Interfund receivables  
 

and payables between funds within governmental activities are eliminated in the Statement of Net 
Position.  The District currently reports no interfund transactions, including receivables and 
payables at year-end. 
 

G. Receivables 
 

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and 
not yet received. Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include property taxes, 
fire flow taxes, intergovernmental subventions or grants, interest earnings, and expense 
reimbursements.   
 

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include revenue 
accruals such as property tax, fire flow tax, and intergovernmental subventions since they are 
usually both measurable and available.  Non-exchange transactions collectible but not available, 
such as property tax, are deferred in the fund financial statements in accordance with the modified 
accrual basis, but not deferred in the government-wide financial statements in accordance with 
the accrual basis.   
 

Interest and investment earnings are recorded when earned only if paid within 60 days since they 
would be considered both measurable and available. The District estimates and records an 
allowance for doubtful accounts based on prior experience. 
 

H. Prepaid Items 
 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. In the 
governmental fund financial statements, prepaid items are offset with nonspendable fund balance 
to indicate they do not constitute current resources available for appropriation. 
 

I. Capital Assets 
 

The District's capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost, if actual is 
unavailable, except for donated capital assets which are recorded at their estimated fair value at 
the date of donation. Policy has set the capitalization threshold for reporting at $5,000 and with a 
useful life greater than one year. 
 

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the 
Statement of Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Position.  
Depreciation is provided over assets estimated useful life using the straight-line method of 
depreciation.  No depreciation is recorded in the year of disposition. 
 
 
 
 

58 58



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 
 

 

29 
 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 

I. Capital Assets, continued 
 

The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows: 
 

Buildings and improvement 30 years 
Vehicles 10-25 years 
Equipment  5-15 years 

 
Fund Financial Statements 
 

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are 
accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. 
 
J. Deferred outflows/inflows of resources 
 
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows 
of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so 
will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. The District 
reports deferred outflows of resources for its pension plan and other post-employment benefits 
(OPEB). 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of 
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will 
not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District reports deferred 
inflows of resources for its pension plan and other post-employment benefits (OPEB). 
 

Government-Wide Statements 
 
K. Compensated Absences 
 

Employees accrue vacation, sick, holiday, administrative leave and compensatory time off 
benefits. District employees have vested interests in the amount of accrued time off, with the 
exception of sick leave and administrative leave, and are paid on termination. Most District 
employees earn annual vacation leave of 12 to 42 days, depending how long they have been 
employed, and whether thy work a 56-hour work week or a 40-hour work week.  Also, annually 
employees may carry over between 50 to 75 days to the next calendar year. All vacation pay is 
accrued when incurred in the government-wide financial statements. A liability for these amounts 
is reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of 
employee resignations or retirements and is currently payable. The general fund is used to 
liquidate compensated absences. 
 
 
 
 
 

59 59



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 
 

 

30 
 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 
Government-Wide Statements, Continued 
 
L. Pensions 
 
The District recognizes a net pension liability, which represents the District’s proportionate share 
of the excess of the total pension liability over the fiduciary net position of the Plan reflected in an 
actuarial report provided by California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS).  
 
The net pension liability is measured as of the District’s prior Plan year‐end. Changes in the net 
pension liability are recorded, in the period incurred, as pension expense or as deferred inflows 
of resources or deferred outflows of resources depending on the nature of the change in the 
liability. The changes in net pension liability that are recorded as deferred inflows of resources or 
deferred outflows of resources (that arise from changes in actuarial assumptions or other inputs 
and differences between expected or actual experience) are amortized over the weighted average 
remaining service life of all participants in the respective pension plan and are recorded as a 
component of pension expense beginning with the period in which they are incurred. 
 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources 
relating to pensions and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
District’s pension plan with CalPERS and additions to/deductions from the plan’s fiduciary net 
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this 
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when 
due and payable in accordance with the benefits terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 
 

Projected earnings on pension investments are recognized as a component of pension expense. 
Differences between projected and actual investment earnings are reported as deferred inflows 
of resources or deferred outflows of resources and amortized as a component of pension expense 
on a closed basis over a five‐year period beginning with the period in which the difference 
occurred. Each subsequent year will incorporate an additional closed basis five‐year period of 
recognition. 
 
M. Equity Classification 
 
Equity is classified as net position and is displayed in three components: 
 

a. Net investment in capital assets – consists of capital assets, including restricted capital 
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any 
bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

60 60



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 
 

 

31 
 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 
M. Equity Classification, continued 

 
b. Restricted net position – consists of net position with constraints placed on the use by 

external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or by laws or regulations of other 
governments or law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

 
c. Unrestricted net position – all other net position that do not meet the definition of 

“restricted” or “net investment in capital assets.” 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance.  Fund balance is classified as 
nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned. The classifications for 
governmental funds are defined as follows by the District’s Fund Balance Policy: 
 

Nonspendable Fund Balance  
 

 Assets that will never convert to cash (prepaid items, inventory) 
 Assets that will not convert to cash soon enough to affect the current period (long-term 

notes or loans receivable). 
 Resources that must be maintained intact pursuant to legal or contractual requirements 

(the principal of an endowment). 
 
Restricted Fund Balance  
 

 Resources that are subject to externally enforceable legal restrictions imposed by parties 
altogether outside the government (creditors, grantors, contributors and other 
governments). 

 Resources that are subject to limitations imposed by law through constitutional provisions 
or enabling legislation. 

 
Committed Fund Balance  
 

 Self-imposed limitations set in place prior to the end of the period (encumbrances, 
economic contingencies and uncertainties). 

 Limitation at the highest level of decision-making (Board) that requires formal action at the 
same level to remove. 

 Board Resolution is required to be taken to establish, modify, or rescind a fund balance 
commitment. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

61 61



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 
 

 

32 
 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 
M. Equity Classification, Continued 
 
Assigned Fund Balance  
 

 Amounts in excess of nonspendable, restricted, and committed fund balance in funds 
other than the general fund automatically are reported as assigned fund balance. 

 Fund Balance committed to pay for the subsequent year’s budget deficit. The amount is 
equal to the projected excess of budgeted expenditures over budgeted revenues by fund. 

 Assigned amounts for a specific purpose are as authorized by the District’s Fire Chief or 
Administrative Services Director through its fund balance policy. 
 

Unassigned Fund Balance  
 

 Residual net resources. 
 Total fund balance in the general fund in excess of nonspendable, restricted, committed 

and assigned fund balance (surplus). 
 Excess of nonspendable, restricted, and committed fund balance over total fund balance 

(deficit). 
 

Fund Balance Policy 
 
The District believes that sound financial management principles require that sufficient funds be 
retained by the District to provide a stable financial base at all times. To retain this stable financial 
base, the District needs to maintain unrestricted fund balance in its District funds sufficient to fund 
cash flows of the District and to provide financial reserves for unanticipated expenditures and/or 
revenue shortfalls of an emergency nature. Committed and unassigned fund balances are 
considered unrestricted. 
 
The purpose of the District’s fund balance policy is to maintain a prudent level of financial 
resources to protect against reducing service levels or raising taxes and fees because of 
temporary revenue shortfalls or unpredicted one‐time expenditures. 
 

N. Program Revenues 
 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who 
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function 
or segment and 2) grants and contributions (including special assessments) that are restricted to 
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. All taxes, 
including those dedicated for specific purposes, and other internally dedicated resources are 
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

62 62



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 
 

 

33 
 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 
O. Property Tax 
 

The County of Humboldt is responsible for assessing, collecting and apportioning property taxes 
for the District.  Under California law, property taxes are assessed and collected by the County 
up to 1% of the full cash value of taxable property, plus other increases approved by the voters 
and distributed in accordance with statutory formulas. The District recognizes property taxes when 
the individual installments are due, provided they are collected within 60 days after year-end. 
 

Secured property taxes are levied on or before the first day of September of each year. They 
become a lien on real property on March 1 preceding the fiscal year for which taxes are levied. 
These taxes are paid in two equal installments; the first is due November 1 and delinquent with 
penalties after December 10; the second is due February 1 and delinquent with penalties after 
April 10. Secured property taxes, which are delinquent and unpaid as of June 30, are declared to 
be tax defaulted and are subject to redemption penalties, cost, and interest when paid. If the  
 
delinquent taxes are not paid at the end of five years, the property is sold at public auction and 
the proceeds are used to pay the delinquent amounts due. Any excess is remitted, if claimed, to 
the taxpayer. Additional tax liens are created when there is a change in ownership of property or 
upon completion of new construction. Tax bills for these new tax liens are issued throughout the 
fiscal year and contain various payments and delinquent dates but are generally due within one 
year. If the new tax liens are lower, the taxpayer receives a tax refund rather than a tax bill. 
Unsecured personal property taxes are not a lien against real property. These taxes are due on 
March 1, and become delinquent, if unpaid on August 31. 
 

The District participates in an alternative method of distribution of property tax levies and 
assessments known as the “Teeter Plan.” The State Revenue and Taxation Code allow counties 
to distribute secured real property, assessment, and supplemental property taxes on an accrual 
basis resulting in full payment to taxing agencies each fiscal year. Any subsequent delinquent 
payments and penalties and interest during a fiscal year will revert to the County.  
 
P. Budgetary Accounting 
 

The District Board of Directors establishes budgets for the General Fund. Budgetary control is 
legally maintained at the fund level for these funds. The budget includes appropriations (budgeted 
expenditures) on a line-item basis and the means of financing them (budgeted revenues.) The 
coordinators of the Budget are the Fire Chief and the Business Manager or designee(s), with 
direct support from each division in the District.  
 
Budget development begins with a mid-year Budget review in January or during a month selected 
by the Fire Chief. The mid-year review is a detailed analysis of District revenue and expenditure 
line items for the current fiscal year. The District fiscal year is from July 1 through June 30 of the 
next calendar year. 
 
 
 
 
 

63 63



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 
 

 

34 
 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 

P. Budgetary Accounting, continued 
 

The mid-year review is published and distributed to the Board, staff and general public for 
consideration during the month of January or during a month selected by the Fire Chief. The mid-
year financial analysis provides the starting point for next fiscal year’s Budget. 
 

Administrators receive a written Budget Packet and a written Budget Timeline in February that 
provides detailed instructions and deadlines for the Budget process. Administrators meet with the 
Fire Chief or designated representative and submit the following for the next fiscal year: 1) goals 
and objectives, 2) preliminary Budget requests, 3) personnel requests and 4) capital equipment 
requests. During this time, revenue sources are projected by the Fire Chief and Accountant. 
 

A draft Budget is compiled for review by the Fire Chief, Business Manager or designated 
representative(s). Individual meetings with each division are held with the Fire Chief or designated 
representative as deemed necessary by the Fire Chief. Programs, projects and staffing are 
reviewed in these sessions and approval is dependent on available funding and Fire Chief’s 
recommendation.  
 

Recommendations and revisions from division review sessions are incorporated into the 
Proposed Budget. The Proposed Budget is submitted to the Board in May for detailed review, 
public comment and Board direction in a public meeting. Public requests and concerns are 
considered during this time.  
 
After deliberation and final changes, the Budget is adopted by the Board of Directors. Preferably 
the Budget is adopted in June, prior to the beginning of the next fiscal year. In the event of unusual 
circumstances, the Budget may be adopted after the beginning of the fiscal year. Regardless, in 
accordance with Health and Safety Code Section 13895, the final Budget is adopted by October 
1 of each fiscal year. 
 

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for all 
funds. Budgeted and actual revenues and expenditures are reviewed monthly by the Board and 
budget amendments and transfers are made as needed. The Accountant monitors appropriations 
on a division basis and conveys this information to the Fire Chief who can approve appropriation 
transfers so long as appropriations in total by fund do not change. 
 

This approach allows the Fire Chief to hold division heads accountable. The District reports 
expenditures and appropriations on a line-item basis to the Board.  
 

Only the Board may approve amendments to appropriations in total by fund. This approach allows 
the Board to hold the Fire Chief accountable for the overall District operations. 
 

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for all 
funds. Budgeted amounts presented in the financial statements are as originally adopted and as 
amended by the Board. Supplemental amendments to the budget were adopted by the Board and 
have been included in the budget to actual statement.  
 
 
 
 

64 64



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 
 

 

35 
 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 

Q. Use of Estimates 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates.  
 

R. Implementation of GASB 75 related to Other Post Employment Benefit Plans 
 

The GASB has issued Statement No. 75, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions”.  The primary objective of this Statement is to 
improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for postemployment 
benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB). It also improves 
information provided by state and local governmental employers about financial support for OPEB 
that is provided by other entities. This Statement supersedes the requirements of Statements No. 
45, “Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions”, as amended, and No. 57, “OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent 
Multiple-Employer Plans”, for OPEB. Statement No. 74, “Financial Reporting for Postemployment 
Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans”, establishes new accounting and financial reporting 
requirements for OPEB plans.   
 

In implementing these Statements, the District recognizes a net OPEB liability, which represents 
the District’s proportionate share of the excess of the total OPEB liability over the fiduciary net 
position of the Plan. The net OPEB liability is measured as of the District’s prior Plan year‐end. 
Changes in the net OPEB liability are recorded, in the period incurred, as expense or as deferred 
inflows of resources or deferred outflows of resources depending on the nature of the change in 
the liability. 
 
S. Comparative Data 
 

Comparative data for the prior year has been presented in the accompanying Management, 
Discussion, and Analysis in order to provide an understanding of changes in the government's 
financial position and operations.  

65 65



66



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 
 

 

37 
 

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE  
 

Accounts receivable consisted of the following at June 30, 2019:   
 

Receivables
Grants 72,100$       
Other receivables 13,304$       
Interest 9,500           

94,904$        
 
 
These amounts resulted in the following concentrations in receivables: 
 
 Governments       76% 
 Other receivables         14% 
 Financial Institutions   10% 
  
Amounts do not indicate a significant concentration (greater than 25%) with any single customer 
or agency. 
 
 

4. PREPAID ITEMS 
 

The prepaid expenses consist of expendable supplies held for consumption and are recorded as 
expenses when consumed. As of June 30, 2019, the District has reported $28,787 of prepaid 
expense. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

67 67



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 
 

 

38 
 

5. CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows: 
 

Balance Balance
June 30, 2018 Additions Deletions June 30, 2019

Governmental activities:
Nondepreciable assets:

Land 224,630$            -$                    -$                  224,630$          
Total nondepreciable assets 224,630              -                      -                    224,630            

Depreciable assets:
Buildings 2,329,696           -                      1                    2,329,697         
Equipment 4,554,105           34,695             (615,865)       3,972,935         

Total depreciable assets 6,883,801           34,695             (615,864)       6,302,632         
Total 7,108,431           34,695             (615,864)       6,527,262         

Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings (2,864,096)          (286,798)         301,455         (2,849,439)       

Total accumulated depreciation (2,864,096)          (286,798)         301,455         (2,849,439)       

Total net capital assets 4,244,335$         (252,103)$       (314,409)$     3,677,823$       

 
 

Depreciation expense for capital assets was charged to categories as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2019

Building and Improvements 59,802$                 
Equipements 47,906                   
Vehicles 179,090                 

Total 286,798$                
 
 

6. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 
 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consisted of the following at June 30, 2019: 
 

Balance 
June 30, 2019

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 44,244$             
Accrued payroll and benefits 155,156             

Total 199,400$            
 

 
 

68 68



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 
 

 

39 
 

6.   ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES, Continued 
 
These amounts resulted in the following concentrations in payables: 
 
  Vendors   22%  Employees  78% 
  
Amounts do not indicate a significant concentration (greater than 25%) with any single vendor or 
employee. 
 
7. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
The District’s balance on long-term liabilities was $304,792.  The following is a summary of 
changes in long-term liabilities for governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2019: 
 

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2018 Additions Retirements June 30, 2019 One Year

Wells Fargo Equipment Finance 450,230$    -$        (145,439)$  304,792$       152,696$   
Compensated absences 107,088      39,515    (34,090)      112,513         28,617       

Total long-term liabilities 557,318$    39,515$  (179,529)$  417,305$       181,313$   
 

 
Lease/Purchase Agreement 
 
On March 14, 2011 the District entered into a lease/purchase agreement in the amount of 
$832,930 for two new Ferrara Engines. Principal and interest amounts are paid in annual 
payments in the amount of $76,018 for six years beginning January 2012, followed by three 
payments of $167,905 and the final payment of $159,685.  
 
The following is the debt service obligations of the District 
 

Year Ending 
June 30, Principal Interest

2020 152,696           15,209          
2021 152,096           7,590            
Total 304,792$         22,799$        

Due within one year 152,696$         15,209$        
Due after one year 152,096           7,590            

Total 304,792$         22,799$        
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

69 69



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 
 

 

40 
 

7. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES, continued 
 
Compensated Absences 
 
The District records employee absences, such as vacations, illness, deferred overtime, and 
holidays, for which it is expected that employees will be paid compensated absences.  As at June 
30, 2019, the District had a compensated absences balance net of $83,896. 
 
8. NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES 
 
Net Position 
 

As of June 30, 2019, net position is as follows: 
 

Net Position  June 30, 2019 
Net investment in capital assets  $3,373,031 
Unrestricted (deficit)  (11,443,985) 
   Total  $(8,070,954) 

 
Restricted balances are for the same purposes as fund balance restrictions because external 
restriction requirements are the same. See descriptions of the restrictions below. 
 
Fund Balance 
 

As of June 30, 2019, the District’s Restricted and Committed fund balances are as follows: 
 

Fund Balances  June 30, 2019 
Nonspendable for prepaid items   $     28,787 
Unassigned  2,974,054 
   Total  $    3,002,840 

 
 

The District considers restricted amounts to have been spent prior to unrestricted amounts when 
an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is 
available.  Committed, assigned, and unassigned amounts, in this order, are considered to have 
been spent when an expenditure is incurred for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund 
balance classifications could be used. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

70 70



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 
 

 

41 
 

9.   RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  

The District purchases insurance coverage from FAIRA (Fire Agencies Insurance Risk 
Authority). FAIRA provides coverage for automobile, general liability, errors and omissions 
losses and property as follows: 
 

Auto liability -combined single limit $1,000,000 
General aggregate   2,000,000 
Management liability   1,000,000 
Cyber-crime liability   1,000,000 
Umbrella liability 10,000,000 
Each occurrence or wrongful act   1,000,000 
Garagekeepers legal liability     250,000 

 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the annual premium to FAIRA was $16,975. 

The County of Humboldt, Risk Management Division, Workers Compensation Program, 
a risk sharing pool administered by the County, provides worker's compensation benefits 
for its members. The premium paid to the County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2019 was $67,410. 

Management believes coverage maintained is sufficient to preclude any significant 
uninsured losses to the District. 

 

10. PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
 

A. General Information about the Pension Plans 

Plan Descriptions - All qualified full-time employees are eligible to participate in the 
District’s Miscellaneous First Tier Plan, Safety Plans, Safety PEPRA and Miscellaneous 
PEPRA Plan (The Plans), agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans 
administered by the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CaIPERS), which 
acts as a common investment and administrative agent for its participating member 
employers.  Benefit provisions under the Plans are established by State statute and Local 
Government resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full 
description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and 
membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

71 71



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 
 

 

42 
 

10. PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS), Continued 
 

Benefits Provided - CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual 
cost of living adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public 
employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one 
year of full-time employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at 
age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability 
benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: The Basic Death 
Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of 
living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees' Retirement 
Law. 
 

The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2019, are summarized as follows: 
 

First Tier PEPRA

Hire date
Prior to                        

January 1, 2013

  f  
January 1, 

2013
Benefit formula 2% @ 55 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - 55 52 - 67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2% to 2.7% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 7% 6.5%

Required employer contribution rates 12.21% 6.8%

Miscellaneous Plan

 
 

First Tier Second Tier PEPRA

Hire date
Prior to                        

January 1, 2013
Prior to                        

January 1, 2013
On or after 

January 1, 2013

Benefit formula 3% @ 50 3% @ 55 2.7% @ 57
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - 50 50 - 55 52 - 67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensatio 2% to 2.7% 2% to 2.7% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 8.99% 8.99% 7.00%

Required employer contribution rates 22.35% 20.42% 12.97%

Safety Plan

 
 

Contributions - Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law requires 
that the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by 
the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding 
contributions for the Plan is determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CaIPERS.  
The actuarially determined rate is based on the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs 
of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any 
unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the difference between the 
actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.  

72



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 
 

 

43 
 

10. PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS), Continued 
 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions  
 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense for 
the Plan were as follows: 
 

Miscellaneous Safety
Contributions - employer 11,921$       725,811$         
Contributions - employee (paid employer) -                   -                       

Total 11,921$       725,811$          
 

As of June 30, 2019, the District reported a net pension liability for its proportionate shares of the 
net pension liability of the Plan as follows:  
 

Proportionate Share
of Net Pension Liability

Miscellaneous 63,659$                      
Safety 5,361,484                   
    Total Net Pension Liability 5,425,143$                 

 
 

 
The District’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net 
pension liability. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2018, and the 
total pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017 rolled forward to June 30, 2018 using standard update 
procedures. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the 
District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected 
contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. The District’s proportionate 
share of the net pension liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2019 was as follows: 
 

Miscellaneous Safety Total
Proportion- June 30, 2018 0.00173% 0.09060% 0.05528%
Proportion- June 30, 2019 0.00169% 0.09138% 0.05563%

Change-Increase/( Decrease) -0.00004% 0.00078% -0.00100%
 

 
 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the District recognized pension expense of $439,645. At June 
30, 2019, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

73 73



74



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 

45 

10. PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS), Continued

Actuarial Assumptions – The June 30, 2017 valuation was rolled forward to determine the June 
30, 2018 total pension liability, based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions.  

Actuarial Assumptions 

Actuarial cost method Entry-age normal cost method 

Actuarial assumptions: 

Discount rate 7.15% 

Inflation 2.75% 

Salary increases Varies by entry age and service 
Mortality Rate Table Derived using CalPERS’ Membership Data for all Funs 
Post-retirement benefit 
increase 

Contract COLA up to 2.75% until purchasing power protection 
allowance floor on purchasing power applies, 2.75% 
thereafter. 

The underlying mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data.  The table 
includes 20 years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB.  For more 
details, please refer to the 2014 experience study report. 

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014 valuation were based on the results of 
an actuarial experience study for the fiscal years 1997 to 2011, including updates to salary 
increase, mortality and retirement rates.  The Experience Study can be obtained at CalPERS’ 
website under Forms and Publications. 

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent. 
To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of the discount 
rate for each plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate 
that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. The tests revealed the assets 
would not run out. Therefore, the current 7.15 percent discount rate is appropriate, and the use 
of the municipal bond rate calculation is not deemed necessary. The long-term expected discount 
rate of 7.15 percent is applied to all plans in the Public Employees' Retirement Fund (PERF). The 
cash flows used in the testing were developed assuming that both members and employers will 
make their required contributions on time and as scheduled in all future years. The stress test 
results are presented in a detailed report called "GASB Crossover Testing Report" that can be 
obtained at CalPERS website under the GASB 68 section. 

75 75



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 
 

 

46 
 

10. PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS), Continued 
 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
 

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, staff took into account both short-term and 
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund (PERF) cash flows. 
Taking into account historical returns of all the Public Employees Retirement Funds' asset classes 
(which includes the agent plan and two cost-sharing plans or PERF A, B, and C funds), expected 
compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-
term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both 
short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each PERF fund. The 
expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived 
at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term 
and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equal to the single equivalent 
rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent. 
 
The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of 
return was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate 
and asset allocation. The target allocation shown was adopted by the Board effective on July 1, 
2014. 
 

Asset Class
Current Target 

Allocation

Real Return 
Years 1 - 

101

Real Return 

Year 11+2

Global Equity 47.0% 4.90% 5.38%
Global Fixed Income 19.0% 0.80% 2.27%
Inflation Sensitive 6.0% 0.60% 1.39%
Private Equity 12.0% 6.60% 6.63%
Real Estate 11.0% 2.80% 5.21%
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.0% 3.90% 5.36%
Liquidity 2.0% -0.55% -90.00%

(1) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period.
(2) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

76 76



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 

47 

10. PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS), Continued

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan, 
calculated using the discount rate for Plan, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of 
the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage 
point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:  

Current 
Discount Rate-1% Discount Rate Discount Rate +1%

(6.15%) (7.15%) (8.15%)

Miscellaneous 120,553$   63,659$   16,695$   
Safety 8,016,225  5,361,483  3,186,398  

 Total 8,136,778$     5,425,143$      3,203,093$    

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position -Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary 
net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.  

Payable to the Pension Plans - At June 30, 2019, the District reported a payable of $52,463 for 
the outstanding amount of contributions to the pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 
2019. 

11. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

Plan Description 

The District provides post-employment health care benefits through a single employer defined 
benefit plan. Retirees who are age 50 or over are eligible to obtain medical coverage. Medical 
coverage is also provided for the surviving spouse of retired employees and the surviving spouse 
of active employees who upon death had attained age 50 and who had a minimum of 10 years of 
service with the District. The Plan does not provide a publicly available financial report. 

Medical coverage is currently provided through CalPERS as permitted under the Public 
Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA). Retirees who are age 50 (age 52, if a 
miscellaneous employee new to PERS on or after January 1, 2013) with 5 years of State or public 
agency service or (b) an approved disability retirement; or over are eligible to obtain medical 
coverage.  

77 77



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 
 

 

48 
 

11. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, Continued 
 

The District provides continuation of medical and dental coverage to its retiring employees. These 
benefits create the following types of OPEB liabilities: 
 

 Explicit subsidy liabilities: An “explicit subsidy” exists when the employer contributes 
directly toward the cost of retiree healthcare. In this program, the District contributes a 
portion of retiree medical premiums for qualifying retirees. The Patient Protection and 
Affordable Care Act (ACA) includes a 40% excise tax on high‐cost employer‐sponsored 
health coverage. Any portion of such future excise tax paid by the employer is also a form 
of explicit subsidy. 
 

 Implicit subsidy liabilities:  An “implicit subsidy” exists when the premiums charged for 
retiree coverage are lower than the expected retiree claims for that coverage. In the 
CalPERS medical program, the same monthly premiums are charged for active 
employees and for pre‐Medicare retirees. CalPERS has confirmed that the claims 
experience of these members is considered together in setting premium rates. For 
Medicare‐eligible members different monthly premiums are charged. CalPERS has 
confirmed that only the claims experience of Medicare eligible members is considered in 
setting Medicare‐eligible premium rates. 

 
Employees Covered by benefit terms 
 
At June 30, 2019, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 
 

Active employees 23 
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 17 
Inactive employees entitled to, but not yet receiving benefits - 
          Total Number of participants  40 

 
District Contribution to the Plan 
 
District contributions to the Plan may occur as benefits are paid to retirees and/or to an irrevocable 
OPEB trust. Benefit payments may occur in the form of direct payments for premiums and taxes 
(“explicit subsidies”) and/or indirect payments to retirees in the form of higher premiums for active 
employees (“implicit subsidies”). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

78 78



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 
 

 

49 
 

11. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, Continued 
 

The charts below show the benefits paid by the District on behalf of retirees (a) during the 
measurement period and (b) during the year following the measurement period but prior to the 
end of fiscal year ending 2019. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Net OPEB Liability 
 
The District’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2018 and the total OPEB liability 
used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation dated June 30, 
2017 that was rolled forward to determine the June 30, 2018 total OPEB liability, based on the 
following actuarial methods and assumptions: 
 

Discount Rate 2.98% - 3.13%
Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases 3.25% per annum
Investment Rate of Return 2.49% - 3.13%

Mortality Rate (1)
Derived using CalPERS' 
Membership Data for all funds

Pre-Retirement Turnover (2)
Derived using CalPERS' 
Membership Data for all funds

Healthcare Trend Rate 5.00% - 7.50%

Actuarial Assumptions:

 

Employer Contributions During the Measurement 
Period, July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018.

Employer Contributions to the Trust -$              

Employer Contributions in the Form of Direct 
Benefit Payments (not reimbursed by trust) 222,645    

Implicit contributions 40,591      

Total Employer Contributions During the 
Measurement Period 263,236$  

Employer Contributions Subsequent to the 
Measurement Date, July 1, 2018 through June 30, 
2019

Employer Contributions to the Trust -$              

Employer Contributions in the Form of Direct 
Benefit Payments (not reimbursed by trust) 240,737    

Implicit contributions 40,567      

Total Employer Contributions Subsequent to the 
Measurement Date 281,304$  

79 79



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 
 

 

50 
 

11. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, Continued 
 
Notes: 
(1) Pre-retirement mortality information was derived from data collected during 1997 to 2011 
CalPERS Experience Study dated January 2014 and post-retirement mortality information was 
derived from the 2007 to 2011 CalPERS Experience Study. The Experience Study Reports may 
be accessed on the CalPERS website www.calpers.ca.gov under Forms and Publications. 
 
(2) The pre-retirement turnover information was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. For 
more details, please refer to the 2007 to 2011 Experience Study Report. The Experience Study 
Report may be accessed on the CalPERS website www.calpers.ca.gov under Forms and 
Publications. 
 

Discount Rate 
 

The District has been and continues to finance its OPEB liability on a pay‐as‐you‐go basis. With 
the District’s approval, the discount rates used in this valuation are based on the S&P Municipal 
Bond 20 Year High Grade Index. As of the beginning and end of the Measurement Period, this 
index indicates discount rates of 3.13% as of June 30, 2017 and 2.98% as of June 30, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

80 80



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 
 

 

51 
 

11. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, Continued 
 

Changes in the OPEB Liability 
 

The changes in the net OPEB liability for the Plan are as follows: 

 
  Total  

OPEB 
Liability 

(a) 

Fiduciary  
Net 

Position 
(b) 

Net  
OPEB 

Liability 
( c) = (a) - (b) 

Balance at Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018 
Measurement date 6/30/2017 

 $   9,676,986   $             -     $   9,676,986  

Change During the Period:   
 

  

Service Cost          481,847                  -             481,847  

Interest Cost           313,852                  -             313,852  

Employer Contributions                    -          263,236         (263,236) 

Benefit Payments        (263,236)      (263,236)                    -    

Assumption Changes           255,819                  -             255,819  
Net Changes in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019           788,282                  -             788,282  

Balance at Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 
2019  

 $ 10,465,268   $             -     $ 10,465,268  

 
 

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
 

The discount rate used for the fiscal year end 2019 is 2.98%. The following presents the net OPEB 
liability of the District if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower 
or one percentage point higher than the current rate, for measurement period ended June 30, 
2018: 
 

Change in
Discount Rate 

Current - 1%
1.98%

Current 
2.98%

Current + 1%
3.98%

Total OPEB Liability 12,441,848    10,465,268  8,921,131      
 

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Health Care Cost Trend Rates 
 

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District if it were calculated using health care 
cost trend rates that are one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the 
current rate, for measurement period ended June 30, 2018 (Healthcare Cost Trend Rate was 
assumed to start at 7.5% and grade down to 5% for years 2024 and thereafter): 
 

Change in
Health Cost Trend Rate

Current
 - 1%

Current 
Trend

Current 
+ 1%

Total OPEB Liability 8,513,487      10,465,268 13,333,053    

81 81



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 
 

 

52 
 

11. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, Continued 
 

Recognition of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 

Gains and losses related to changes in total OPEB liability and fiduciary net position are 
recognized in OPEB expense systematically over time. Amounts are first recognized in OPEB 
expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred 
outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB and are to be recognized in future 
OPEB expense. 
The recognition period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss: 
 
Net difference between projected and 
actual earnings on OPEB plan 
investments 
 
All other amounts 

5 years  
 
 
Expected average remaining service 
lifetime (EARSL) (9.69 Years at June 30, 2018) 
 

 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 
 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the City recognized OPEB expense of $743,610. As of 
fiscal year, ended June 30, 2019, the District reported deferred outflows of resources related to 
OPEB from the following sources: 
 

Outflows
of Resources

Outflows
of Resources

OPEB Contribution subsequent to 
measurement date 281,304$            -$                 
Change in assumptions -                      374,158           
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on and actual earnings on OPEB plan -                      -                   

Total 281,304$            374,158$          
 

The $281,304 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to 
the June 30, 2018 measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability 
during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of 
resources related to OPEB will be recognized as expense as follows: 
 

For the 
Fiscal Year

Ending June 30,

Recognized 
Net Deferred 

Outflows (Inflows)
of Resources

2020 (52,089)                   
2021 (52,089)                   
2022 (52,089)                   
2023 (52,089)                   
2024 (52,089)                    

82 82



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 
 

 

53 
 

11. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 
 
The GASB has issued Statement No. 83, "Certain Asset Retirement Obligations." The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018. 
Earlier application is encouraged. This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting 
for certain asset retirement obligations (AROs). An ARO is a legally enforceable liability 
associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. A government that has legal obligations 
to perform future asset retirement activities related to its tangible capital assets should recognize 
a liability based on the guidance in this Statement. This statement had no effect on these financial 
statements. 
 
The GASB has issued Statement No. 84, "Fiduciary Activities." The requirements of this 
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Earlier 
application is encouraged. The objective of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding the 
identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those 
activities should be reported. The District will implement this statement, as applicable, to its 
financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2020. 
 
The GASB has issued Statement No. 87, "Leases." The requirements of this Statement are 
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The objective of this Statement 
is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and 
financial reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of 
governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities 
for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of 
resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes 
a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings 
of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a 
lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a 
lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and 
consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities. The District will implement this 
statement, as applicable, to its financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2021. 
 
The GASB has issued Statement No. 88, "Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct 
Borrowings and Direct Placements." The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting 
periods beginning after June 15, 2018. Earlier application is encouraged. The primary objective 
of this Statement is to improve the information that is disclosed in notes to government financial 
statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and direct placements. It also clarifies 
which liabilities governments should include when disclosing information related to debt. This 
statement had no effect on these financial statements. 
 
The GASB has issued Statement No. 89, "Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End 
of a Construction Period." The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2019. Earlier application is encouraged. The objectives of this 
Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and comparability of information about capital assets 
and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) to simplify accounting for interest cost 
incurred before the end of a construction period. The District will implement this statement, as 
applicable, to its financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2021. 
 

83 83



Arcata Fire District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 
 

 

54 
 

12. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS, continued  
 

The GASB has issued Statement No. 90, "Majority Equity Interests—an amendment of GASB 
Statements No. 14 and No. 61." The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting 
periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Earlier application is encouraged. The primary 
objectives of this Statement are to improve the consistency and comparability of reporting a 
government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and to improve the 
relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. The District will 
implement this statement, as applicable, to its financial statements for the year ending June 30, 
2020. 
 
The GASB has issued Statement No. 91, "Conduit Debt Obligations." The requirements of this 
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020. Earlier 
application is encouraged. The primary objectives of this Statement are to provide a single method 
of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with 
(1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, 
and (3) related note disclosures. This Statement achieves those objectives by clarifying the 
existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a 
liability of the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional 
commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated with 
conduit debt obligations; and improving required note disclosures. The District will implement this 
statement, as applicable, to its financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2022. 
 

84 84



Required Supplementary Information

55 85



Arcata Fire District
Required Supplementary Information - Schedule of Contributions 

Miscellaneous Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years* 2018 2017 2016

Contractually required contribution (actuarially determined) 11,921          9,108             9,094             

Contributions in relation to the actuarillay determined 
contributions (11,921)         (9,108)            (9,094)            

Contribution deficiency (exess) -                -                 -                 

Covered-employee payroll 1,785,379     1,848,645      1,707,706      

Contribution as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 0.67% 0.49% 0.53%

Safety Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years* 2018 2017 2016

Contractually required contribution (actuarially determined) 725,811        658,858         607,694         

Contributions in relation to the actuarillay determined 
contributions (725,811)       (658,858)        (597,511)        

Contribution deficiency (exess) -                -                 10,183.00      

Covered-employee payroll 1,785,379     1,848,645      1,707,706      

Contribution as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 40.65% 35.64% 35.59%

Notes to Schedule
1) Covered employee payroll represents compensation earnable and pensionable compensation. Only compensation and 
pensionable compensation that would possible go into the determination of retirement benefits are included.

*- Due to change in CalPERS reporting information,only three years were available. Additional years will be presented as 
they become available.

5686 86



Arcata Fire District
Required Supplementary Information - Schedule of the District's Proportionate
Share of the Net Pension Liability

Miscellaneous Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years* 2018 2017 2016

Plan's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) 0.00169% 0.00173% 0.00170%

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) 63,659$       68,269$       57,351$       

Plan's Covered-Employee Payroll 1,785,379$  1,848,645$  1,707,706$  

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) as a 
Percentage of its Covered-Employee Payroll

3.57% 3.69% 3.36%

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Fiduciary Net Position as a 
Percentage of the Plan’s Total Pension Liability 117.84% 79.99% 80.66%

Plan's Proportionate Share of Aggregate Employer Contribution 13,596$       10,325$       8,909$         

Safety Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years* 2018 2017 2016

Plan's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) 0.09138% 0.09060% 0.09290%

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) 5,361,483$  5,413,649$  4,812,049$  

Plan's Covered-Employee Payroll 1,785,379$  1,848,645$  1,707,706$  

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) as a 
Percentage of its Covered-Employee Payroll

300.30% 292.84% 281.78%

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Fiduciary Net Position as a 
Percentage of the Plan’s Total Pension Liability 72.16% 70.75% 70.28%

Plan's Proportionate Share of Aggregate Employer Contribution 589,216$     451,888$     393,111$     

Notes to Schedule
1) Covered employee payroll represents compensation earnable and pensionable compensation. Only compensation earnable and 
pensionable compensation that would possibly go into the determination of retirement benefits are included.

*- Due to change in CalPERS reporting information,only three years were available. Additional years will be presented as they 
become available.

5787 87



Arcata Fire District
Required Supplementary Information - Schedule of 
Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
for the Measurement Periods Ended June 30,

2019 2018
Total OPEB Liability 

Service Cost 481,847$  524,580$  
Interest on the total OPEB liability 313,852  275,938  
Differences between expected and actual experience -  -  
Changes of benefit terms -  -  
Changes of assumptions 255,819  (760,555)  
Benefit payments (263,236) (269,146)

Total OPEB liability ‐ beginning 9,676,986 9,906,169 
Total OPEB liability ‐ ending (a) 10,465,268$  9,676,986$  

Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions ‐ employer 263,236$  269,146$  
Net Investment income -  -  
Benefit payments (263,236)  (269,146)  
Net change in plan fiduciary net position -  -  
Plan fiduciary net position ‐ beginning -  -  

Plan fiduciary net position ‐ ending (b) -$  -$   

Net OPEB liability ‐ ending (a) ‐ (b) 10,465,268$  9,676,986$  

Covered‐employee payroll 1,785,379$    1,848,645$  

  Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered‐employee payroll 586.17% 523.46%

Notes to Schedule
1) GASB 75 requires presentation of the 10‐year history of changes in the Net OPEB Liability.
However, since this is the third year  of implementation, only two years were available

5888 88



Arcata Fire District
Required Supplementary Information - Schedule of Contributions 

June 30, 2019

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 2018
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) 263,236.00$          269,146.00$             

Contributions in relation to the ADC (263,236.00)           (269,146.00)              
Contribution deficiency ( excess) -$                       -$                          

Covered-employee payroll 1,785,379.00         1,848,645.00            

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 14.74% 14.56%

Notes to Schedule

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Valuation Date June 30, 2017
Funding Method Entry Age Normal Cost, level percent of pay
Asset Valuation Method Market value of assets ($0; plan is not yet funded)
Discount Rates

Participants Valued

Salary Increase

Assumed Wage inflation

Inflation Rate 2.75%

1)GASB 75 requires presentation of the 10‐year history of changes in the Net OPEB Liability. However, since this is the second year of 
implementation, only two years were available

Only current active employees and retired participants and covered 
dependents are valued. No future entrants are considered in this 
valuation.

3.25% per year; since benefits do not depend on salary, this is used only 
to allocate the cost of benefits between service years.

2.75% per year; used to determine amortization payments if developed 
on a level percent of pay basis.

2.98% on June 30, 2018
3.13% on June 30, 2017

5989 89



This page intentionally left blank.

6090 90



 

7080 Donlon Way, Suite 204, Dublin, CA 94568 ● phone (925) 556-6200 ● fax: (510) 217-5930 
1102 South Main Street, #1, Fort Bragg, CA  95437 ● phone (707) 964-6325 

www.jjacpa.com 
 

 

  
 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING 
STANDARDS 

 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

 
The Board of Directors 
Arcata Fire Protection District 
Arcata, California 
 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, 
the aggregate remaining fund information, and the budgetary comparison information of the Arcata Fire Protection 
District (District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
October 28, 2019 . 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that 
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  

91



 

 

 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards.  

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
 

JJACPA, Inc. 
October 28, 2019 JJACPA, Inc. 
  Dublin, CA 
 

 

92 92



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

ARCATA FIRE DISTRICT 
COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE AND 

COMMUNICATION OF INTERNAL CONTROL RELATED MATTERS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

93 93



 

7080 Donlon Way, Suite 204, Dublin, CA 94568 ● phone (925) 556-6200 ● fax: (925) 556-6201 
www.jjacpa.com 

 

 
 
October 28, 2019 
 
 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Arcata Fire District 
Arcata, California 
 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the Arcata Fire District (District) as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2019 and have issued our report thereon dated October 28, 2019. Professional standards 
require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit. 
 
Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit 
 
As communicated in our engagement letter dated July 19, 2019, our responsibility, as described by 
professional standards, is to form and express an opinion(s) about whether the financial statements that 
have been prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of 
the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities. 
 
Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain 
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial 
reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the District solely for 
the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such 
internal control. 
 
We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our 
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. 
However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to 
communicate to you.  
 
Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit  
 
We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to 
you. 
 
 
 

94 94



 

 

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 
 
The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm, have complied with all relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence.  
 
Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices 
 
Significant Accounting Policies 
 

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the 
significant accounting policies adopted by the District is included in Note 1 to the financial statements. 
As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, during the year, the District changed its method of 
accounting for pensions by adopting Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 
No.75“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions”.  This 
Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 45, “Accounting and Financial Reporting by 
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions”, as amended, and No. 57, “OPEB 
Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans”, for OPEB. Statement No. 74, 
“Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans”, establishes new 
accounting and financial reporting requirements for OPEB plans.  The provisions in Statement 75 are 
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017. No matters have come to our attention that would 
require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to account for 
significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or 
emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.  
 

Significant Accounting Estimates 
 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and 
experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting 
estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because 
of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current 
judgments. 
 
The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are useful lives of capital 
assets (“useful lives”). 
 
Management’s estimate of the useful lives is based on experience with and observation of capital assets, 
by category (e.g. infrastructure) as well as industry standards, when applicable (i.e. buildings). We 
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the useful lives and determined that it is 
reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
  
Financial Statement Disclosures  
 
Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive 
because of their significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the 
District’s financial statements relate to commitments and contingencies. 
 
Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of 
the audit. 
 

95 95



 

 

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements  
 
For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and 
likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and 
communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us 
to also communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant 
classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole. 
Management has corrected all identified misstatements. 
 
In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected 
misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures. 
None of the misstatements identified by us as a result of our audit procedures and corrected by 
management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as 
a whole or applicable opinion units. 
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, 
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, which could be significant to the District’s financial statements or the auditor’s report. No such 
disagreements arose during the course of the audit. 
 
Representations Requested from Management 
 
We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the attached 
letter dated October 28, 2019.  
 
Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other 
accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters. 
 
Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues 
 
In the normal course of our professional association with the District, we generally discuss a variety of 
matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, operating and 
regulatory conditions affecting the entity, and operational plans and strategies that may affect the risks 
of material misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as the 
District’s auditors. 
 
 
 
Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements 
 
Pursuant to professional standards, our responsibility as auditors for other information in documents 
containing the District’s audited financial statements does not extend beyond the financial information 
identified in the audit report, and we are not required to perform any procedures to corroborate such 
other information. However, in accordance with such standards, we have read the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis and considered whether such information or the manner of its presentation was 
materially inconsistent with its presentation in the financial statements. 

96 96



 

Communication of Internal Control Related Matters 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management of 
the District and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 

Joseph J. Arch
JOSEPH J. ARCH, CPA 
President/CEO 
JJACPA, INC.  

97 97



STAFF REPORT Item 9.2 

Date: January 14, 2019   
To: Board of Directors, Arcata Fire District 
From:  Becky Schuette, Board Secretary  
Subject: Request for Nominations for Humboldt Local Agency Formation 

Commission (LAFCo) 

Background 
Local Agency Formation Commissions, known as LAFCos, were created in each county 
by the California State Legislature in 1963. LAFCos have regulatory and planning 
responsibilities to coordinate the timely development of local governmental agencies 
and their services while protecting agricultural and open-space resources. Most notably, 
this includes managing local governmental boundary changes by approving or 
disapproving proposals involving the formation, expansion, or dissolution of cities and 
special districts. 
Each LAFCo operates independently of the state and local government agencies. 
However, LAFCos are tasked with administering a section of Government Code 
(Section 56000, et seq.) known as the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government 
Reorganization Act of 2000. The CKH Act requires LAFCo to operate within a set of 
state-mandated parameters encouraging planned, well-ordered, efficient urban 
development patterns, the preservation of open-space lands, and the discouragement 
of urban sprawl. 
Humboldt LAFCo is an independent local agency created by the State Legislature in 
1963 to encourage orderly growth and development of local agencies. LAFCo’s mission 
is to facilitate changes in local governmental structure and boundaries that fosters 
orderly growth and development, promotes the efficient delivery of services, and 
encourages the preservation of open space and agricultural lands. LAFCo seeks to be 
proactive in raising awareness and building partnerships to accomplish this through its 
special studies, programs, and actions. 
LAFCo is responsible for approving proposed jurisdictional boundary changes, including 
annexations and detachments, incorporation of new cities, formation of new special 
districts, and the consolidation, merger, and dissolution of existing special districts. 
LAFCo also conducts studies to help perform its regulatory duties. Specifically, 
municipal service reviews are prepared to evaluate the level and range of services prior 
to adopting spheres of influence for each city and special district. 
Humboldt LAFCo is composed of seven regular commissioners: two county 
supervisorial members, two city council members, two special district members, and 
one public member. Commission members serve four-year terms. There is also one 
alternate member for each of the four classifications. The Commission employs its own 
staff, an Executive Officer and Administrator. 
Attachment 1 is a memo from the LAFCo Executive Officer, indicating that three of the 
current member terms are expiring in June and requesting nominations to serve on 
LAFCo. If the Arcata Fire District Board chooses to nominate a Board member to the 

98



LAFCo ballot, the Board Secretary will complete and submit Attachment 2 along with 
Attachment 3, completed by the nominee.  
Deadline for submission of nominations is Friday, March 20, 2020. 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Board consider the information provided, take public comment 
and consider nomination of an Arcata Fire District Board Member to be a candidate for 
the LAFCo ballot. 

District Funds Requested/Required 
☒ No Impact/Not Applicable
☐ Funding Source Confirmed:
☐ Other:

Alternatives 
The Board has the following alternatives: 

1. Take no action
2. With direction, refer the topic back to staff for further consideration

Attachments 
Attachment 1 – Request for Nominations to Serve on LAFCo 
Attachment 2 – Special District Member Nomination Form 2020 
Attachment 3 – Special District Member Candidate Information Sheet 2020 

99



Attachment 1

100



101



Attachment 2

102



Attachment 3

103



STAFF REPORT Item 9.3 

Date: January 14, 2020 
To: Board of Directors, Arcata Fire District 
From:  Justin McDonald, Fire Chief 
Subject: Consider Claim for Damages Filed by Cynthia Turnbull 

Discussion 
On December 23, 2019, E8215 was involved in a collision at Samoa Boulevard and J 
Street in Arcata.   
Pursuant to the District’s risk management policy, Fire Agencies Insurance Risk 
Authority (FAIRA), the District liability insurance carrier, was notified by staff of the 
incident. On December 31, 2019, the owner of the damaged vehicle, Cynthia Turnbull 
was provided instructions for filing a claim with the District and the appropriate claim 
form.  Ms. Turnbull’s claim was received by District staff on January 6, 2020. Per FAIRA 
recommendation and District Policy, the District should reject this claim and refer the 
claim to Allied Public Risks, who represents the District in this matter. 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Board deny this claim and direct staff to refer this claim to the 
third party administrator of the District for its review of the claim. 

District Funds Requested/Required 
☒ No Impact/Not Applicable
☐ Funding Source Confirmed:
☐ Other:

Alternatives 
The Board has the following alternatives: 

1. Allow the claim in its entirety thereby paying the monetary damages requested in
the claim;

2. Allow the claim in part (a partial payment of monetary damages) and reject the
remainder of the claim;
Pay some monetary damages as a compromise on the claim if the liability on the
claim or the amount due in damages is disputed; or,

3. Do nothing and thereby permit the claim to be denied by operation of law after
forty-five days

Attachments 
Attachment 1- Accident Report 
Attachment 2- Email Communication with Claim Instructions 
Attachment 3- Claim from Cynthia Turnbull 
Attachment 4- Communication from Allied Public Risk 

104



Attachment 1

105



Attachment 2

106



Attachment 3

107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



Attachment 4

119



STAFF REPORT Item 9.4 

Date: January 14, 2020 
To: Board of Directors, Arcata Fire District 
From:  Justin McDonald, Fire Chief 
Subject: Consider Establishing a Board Policy and Procedures Manual 

Review Committee 

Discussion 
At a past meeting, Board members indicated that it might be time to review the current 
Board of Directors’ Policy and Procedures Manual.  It is recommended in the manual 
that the Board review it annually; however, the last version of the document was 
approved in February of 2017. The majority of the currently seated Directors are not 
those that were in office at that time, therefore staff is requesting input from the current 
Board.  

Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Board president consider accepting Board volunteers and 
appoint two Board members to an ad-hoc committee to work with staff to review, identify 
and note areas that need correction or updating.  Recommendations will be made to the 
Board at a future regular meeting and the updated manual adopted via resolution.   

District Funds Requested/Required 
☒ No Impact/Not Applicable
☐ Funding Source Confirmed:
☐ Other:

Alternatives 
The Board has the following alternatives: 

1. Take no action
2. With direction, refer the topic back to staff for further consideration

Attachments 
None 

120



                  Item 10.1

121



122



Pictured left to right Battalion Chief Sean Campbell, Captain Angela Hawks, Eliska Crowell and 
Firefighter Brenden Green 

Item 10.2

123



Item 10.3

124



125



Item 10.4

126



Item 10.5

127



128



129



Item 10.6

130



131



132



Item 10.7

133



134



Page 2 of 4 

Monthly Operations Report 

Major Incidents 

12/16/2019  Structure Fire, Arcata High School. Crews arrived to an extinguished trash 
can fire and provided smoke removal from the buildings. Property and 
content Loss- $2,500.  Property and content saved $31,000,000. The 
cause of the fire was is under investigation.  

Mad River Station Brownouts – There were no station brownouts in December. 

December Overtime Hours - Career staff covered 819 hours of OT to maintain 
minimum staffing at the stations. There were also 204 hours in Duty Officer Coverage. 

Training Highlights – 239 hours of training that included live fire training, pumping, 
hose evolutions, drivers training, and VLU monthly training. 

Prevention / Community Risk Reduction – Engine Companies spent 12 hours 
completing inspections.  They conducted 23 business inspections; 16 locations in 
McKinleyville and 7 locations in Arcata were visited.  

Maintenance – 92 hours of station maintenance and upkeep, 12 hours of vehicle and 
equipment maintenance.  In-house vehicle maintenance has a value of $1440 saved if 
we were to take it to a shop.   

Arcata 0:05:15 0:18:46

McKinleyville 0:01:22 0:02:08

Arcata 0:01:02 0:02:23

Mad River 0:01:55 0:01:54

LIGHTS AND SIREN - AVERAGE TURNOUT TIME (Dispatch to Enroute)

AVERAGE FOR ALL CALLS 0:05:48

Mad River 

PRE-INCIDENT VALUE LOSSES

0:05:58 0:06:26

McKinleyville 0:05:10 0:06:10

Station EMS FIRE

AVERAGE FOR ALL CALLS 0:01:28

Aid Received 1

$32,576,015.00 $20,449.00

Station EMS FIRE

OVERLAPPING CALLS

# OVERLAPPING

MUTUAL AID

% OVERLAPPING

200 40.63%

LIGHTS AND SIREN - AVERAGE RESPONSE TIME (Dispatch to Arrival)

Aid Type Total

Aid Given 6

135



Page 3 of 4 

Community Risk Reduction / Fire Prevention Report 

Fire Marshal’s Office Hours worked – 98 
Activity Count 

• Construction Inspections: 18 
• Project Referrals : 6 (0- BLFD) 
• Plan reviews: 9 (2- BLFD) 
• Business Construction Inspection 0 
• Business License Inspection: 2 
• Special Inspection: 2 

o Cypress Grove, Ocean West
• Cannabis:
 Facility Inspections: 2 
 Cannabis Facility Tour: 0 

• Enforcement / Abatement: 0 
• City/County Building Department Pre-app Mtg: 4 
• Meetings: 0 
• Public Education: 2 

o Northern Emeralds, Holiday Inn Mck,
• Hydrant Flow: 0 
• Building Code Interpretations: 0 

R1/R2 Inspection Program Total Hours – 32 hours 

Activity  Count 
New Inspections 59 Sites / 209 Units 
Re-inspections:  40 Sites 

Results:  37 Correction Notice Issued 
16 Passed  
25 Passed with comments 
2 Pending  

Monthly Administrative Report 

Dispatch Services – Senator McGuire has meet with CalFire leadership; we are 
waiting for a response from his office regarding the results.    

Mid-Year Budget review – The finance committee will meet and review the budget 
once the tax revenue report is received from the County.  The committee will report 
back to the Board at the February meeting.   

136



137



MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT Item 11.4 

Date: 1/14/20 
To: Board of Directors, Arcata Fire District 
From:  Arcata Professional Firefighters Local 4981 

• Arcata Professional Firefighters Local 4981 has elected a new E-board:
President – Anthony Benelisha
Vice President – Scott Gordinier
Secretary/Treasurer – James Sakkis
Please reach out to us at any time.  We look forward to working with the Board!

• California Professional Firefighters is visiting this week
o Help with funding measure
o Help with dispatch issue

• We have begun authoring the first walk piece

• Toys for tots was a huge success
o Thank you Ross McDonald

• Chamber of commerce newsletter

138



ARCATA VOLUNTEER 
FIREFIGHTERS ASSOCIATION, INC. 

2149 Central Avenue 
McKinleyville, California 95519 

(707) 825-2000

MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT  

Date: 01/14/20 
To: Board of Directors, Arcata Fire District 
From:  Arcata Volunteer Firefighter’s Association 

1) Simpson Family Foundation Grant awarded AVFA $26,440 for a second Lucas CPR Compression device.
We are looking into the option of acquiring 2 “Certified Pre-owned” devices for the price of one new one.

2) Berg Foundation awarded AVFA $24,600 for 30 Ballistic Vests.  Sample vests are on the way.

3) Al Masterson Memorial Holiday Dinner held Sat. 12/14.   32 attendees.

4) Wal-Mart Grant application submitted for $5000 to replace classroom chairs.

5) FEMA/SAFER Grant period opening soon.  We are exploring our options.

6) AVFA will be repainting trim on 9th St. Station.

7) Plaque dedicating the classroom to Archie Bernardi should be ready soon, thanks to Sally and Pete Lindke.

8) CPR program continues to draw good turnouts.

139



The Archie Bernardi Training Classroom 

Archie Bernardi joined the Arcata Volunteer Fire Department in 1945. He remained an active 
member of the department until his passing on December 22, 2007, totaling 62 years of service 
to the community.  

Archie's top priority in the fire service was quality training, spending many years as the 
Department Training Officer. Numerous volunteer firefighters benefitted from the progressive 
training Archie provided and went on to careers in the fire service. Archie only gave up the 
Training Officer position to become Fire Chief in 1974.  

In memory of his commitment to Fire Service Training, this Classroom is dedicated to Chief 
Archie Bernardi. 

140




